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I am pleased to present my report to the sharecholders of Dynamic
Holdings Limited (“Company”).

RESULTS

For the financial year ended 30 June 2016, the Company and its
subsidiaries (“Group”) recorded a total revenue of HK$103,870,000
(2015: HK$103,437,000) and gross profit of HK$83,971,000
(2015: HK$82,456,000). These results were mainly attributable to
the improved rental income of investment properties of the Group
denominated in renminbi (“RMB”), together with stable gross profit
margin of 81% (2015: 80%).

In addition, the Group accounted for other gain of HK$6,266,000
(2015: HK$23,648,000) that arose mainly from interest income. It
reduced significantly due to net exchange loss of HK$12,785,000
(2015: net exchange gain of HK$411,000) arisen from the fluctuation
of RMB devalued against Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”) in the year. As
for capital assets, the Group recognised an aggregate increase in fair
value of its investment properties in the sum of HK$83,076,000 (2015:
HK$57,224,000).

Due to the effect of currency translation from functional currency in
RMB to presentation currency in HKD as RMB devalued against HKD
at about 8% in the year, the profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company amounted to HK$95,085,000 (2015: HK$101,586,000),
which dropped by 6% from that of the previous year, with basic
earnings per share of HK$0.427 (2015: HK$0.463).

Taken account of other comprehensive expense of exchange difference
on translation of RMB to presentation currency of HKD in the
consolidated financial statements, the total comprehensive expense
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to HK$66,749,000
(2015: total comprehensive income of HK$114,451,000) for the year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In the year under review, the operating segments of the Group
consisted of property rental and property sales in the mainland China.
The rental segment of investment properties in Beijing and Shanghai,
which was the major segment assets of the Group with satisfactory
rental performance denominated in RMB, remained as the key and
solid contributor of revenue and results of the Group.

The core rental business of investment properties of the Group, which
were quality offices in Pudong in Shanghai and well-established mall
together with carparks in Chaoyang District in Beijing with asset value
in an aggregate of RMB1,646,300,000 (2015: RMB1,577,300,000),
performed steadily in the year with total revenue of property rental
of RMB86,270,000 (2015: RMB81,883,000), showing a mild
increase of 5% as compared with that of last year. Such rental income
presented in the financial statements in the sum of HK$103,870,000
(2015: HK$103,437,000) and contributed to all (2015: all) of the
total turnover of the Group. Meanwhile, the fair value of these
investment properties appreciated in the total of RMB69,000,000
(2015: RMB45,300,000), translating into HK$83,076,000 (2015:
HK$57,224,000). As such, the segment results of property rental
reported a profit of RMB138,622,000 (2015: RMB110,582,000),
depicting in HK$166,902,000 (2015: HK$139,691,000) with a
moderate increment of 19% from that of the last year.

In Beijing, the well-established community mall of the Group known
as “Uptown Mall” with mid-range retailers sustained high occupancy
at constant rental growth in the year. The mall rental was in the sum of
RMB30,124,000 (2015: RMB28,804,000), representing a fair rise of
5% as compared with that of the last year. This rental translated into
HK$36,269,000 (2015: HK$36,386,000) and contributing 35% (2015:
35%) of the total revenue of the Group. As regards fair value of these
investment properties, the Group recognised appreciation in the sum of
RMB4,000,000 (2015: RMB13,300,000), depicting in HK$4,816,000
(2015: HK$16,801,000). Consequently, the segment results (including
the effect of fair-value appreciation of properties) reported a profit of
HK$31,255,000 (2015: HK$44,119,000), showing a drop of 29% from
that of the last year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

With limited residential units available for sale by the Group in
Beijing, the proceeds from sale of residential units held by the
Group at “Chaoyang Garden” were nil (2015: nil), thereby incurring
an administrative loss of HK$140,000 (2015: HK$158,000) in the
segment results.

In Shanghai, office market in core business district in Pudong
remained active due to demand from local financial and professional
companies in the year. The quality offices of the Group known as
“Eton Place” primely located at prominent financial area of Little
Lujiazui were fully taken up at sustainable rental growth. And the
rental revenue amounted to RMB56,147,000 (2015: RMB53,079,000),
denoting a mild increase of 6% from that of the last year. It presented
into HK$67,601,000 (2015: HK$67,051,000), making up 65%
(2015: 65%) of the total turnover of the Group. The fair value of
these office properties appreciated in the sum of RMB65,000,000
(2015: RMB32,000,000), depicting in HK$78,260,000 (2015:
HK$40,423,000). Thereby, the segment results (including the effect
of fair-value appreciation of properties) was making a profit of
HK$135,647,000 (2015: HK$95,572,000), representing a marked
increment of 42% from the one of the last year.

During the year under review, the Group continued to negotiate with
the Chinese joint venture partner and relevant government authorities
regarding the liquidation of Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour Enterprises
Ltd. (“Zhen Wah”), a joint venture in which the Company holds 49%,
including a proposal for re-zoning, compensation for demolition and
relocation and increase of plot ratio of the land held by Zhen Wah
and located in Tung Kok Tau, Nanshan district, Shenzhen (“Land”)
(“Proposal”).

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company on 11 July 2016,
the court of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) has accepted
the application for compulsory liquidation of Zhen Wah and Zhong
Lun Law Firm Shenzhen Office (Jdb 517 # i (I 13 Fili I 155
) has been appointed as the liquidation committee of Zhen Wah
(“Liquidation Committee”). The Liquidation Committee has taken
over the management of Zhen Wah, including matters regarding the
Proposal.

The Company has been closely monitoring the situation with the
assistance of its legal advisers. Based on PRC legal advice received by
the Group, the Land will eventually be sold by way of public auction
or disposed of by other applicable means in accordance with PRC
laws, and any surplus (after settlement of all relevant liabilities) will
be distributed to the joint venture partners in accordance with their
equity contributions.

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Capital Structure

The financial position of the Group remains sound and liquid. During
the year under review, the financing and treasury policies of the
Group were managed and controlled at the corporate level and prudent
manner, to utilise the group funding and to manage the financial risks
effectively. At 30 June 2016, the equity attributable to its owners
amounted to HK$1,902,346,000 (2015: HK$1,974,794,000) with net
asset value per share of HK$8.48 (2015: HK$9.00). Total unsecured
and secured bank borrowings of the Group amounted to about
HK$149,593,000 (2015: HK$172,192,000), which were in Hong Kong
dollars and repayable within one year on floating rate basis. As at 30
June 2016, the gearing ratio of the Group was 8% (2015: 9%) based
on the total debt of the Group to its equity attributable to owners of
the Company. The exposure to foreign currency fluctuations of RMB
against HKD affected the Group in the year resulting in net exchange
loss of HK$12,785,000 (2015: net exchange gain of HK$411,000) and
no financial instruments were used for hedging purpose in the year.
Meanwhile, the recent fluctuation of renminbi yuans may affect the
financial performance and position of the Group, which the Group will
continue to assess and minimise the adverse impact.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

In the year under review, there was sufficient cashflow as generated by
rental revenue of investment properties in Shanghai and Beijing. As at
30 June 2016, the Group’s fixed bank deposits and bank balance and
cash stood at HK$244,719,000 (2015: HK$252,829,000), denominated
primarily in renminbi yuans. With sufficient cashflow, the Group
maintained an un-utilised credit facilities of HK$11,000,000 (2015:
HK$11,000,000) as working capital at floating interest rate as at 30
June 2016.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company (“Directors”) have given careful consideration to the
future liquidity of the Group. While recognising that the Group had
net current liabilities of approximately HK$14,664,000 at 30 June
2016, the Directors are of the opinion that the Group will be able to
meet its financial obligations as they fall due for the foreseeable future
as the Group has sufficient and steady projected future cash inflow
and available unutilised bank borrowing facilities. And the Directors
expect to renew the existing banking facilities on similar terms and
conditions when the existing banking facilities of the Group mature (if
necessary). Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Pledge of Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2016, the Group pledged its properties with a total
carrying value of HK$835,410,000 (2015: HK$850,864,000), an
assignment of rental and sale proceeds from such properties and a
charge over shares in respect of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group to financial institutions as security against general banking
facilities granted to the Group, and also pledged certain of its bank
deposits in the sum of HK$14,249,000 (2015: HK$7,488,000) to banks
to secure banking facilities and home loans granted to the home buyers
of property project of the Group. As at the end of the reporting period,
the Group has given guarantees in respect of settlement of home loans
provided by banks to the home buyers of a property project in Beijing.
As at 30 June 2016, the Group had given guarantees in respect of such
home loans of HK$8,800,000 (2015: HK$13,313,000). The Directors
of the Company consider that the fair values of these financial
guarantee contracts at their initial recognition and at the end of the
reporting period are insignificant on the basis of the low loan ratio.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the economy in China will continue to be in slower
but more resilient growth, taken account of official stimulus policy and
weakening RMB under global economic uncertainty. It is anticipated
that it will increasingly shift towards a higher value-added economy
such as the services industry and domestic consumption, bolstering
leasing demand of office and retail sectors.

In Beijing, the launch of huge prime shopping areas, strong
competition from on-line retail sales, sluggish luxury market and
Chinese tendency of overseas purchase will continue to decelerate
rental growth of retail market. Mid-range and mass-market retailers
are expected to remain the major demand driver. And the Group
will continue to strategically optimise mid-range brand portfolio and
retailer mix as well as massive marketing campaigns and promotion
activities, in line with shoppers’ need and lifestyle for sustaining high
occupancy rate and constant revenue to the Group.

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

In Shanghai, it is expected that office market in Pudong as financial
hub will remain buoyant with active leasing demand from finance and
professional sectors, despite impending glut of premier office supply,
infrastructural construction nearby Eton Place and full implementation
of value-added tax since 1 May 2016. To maintain high occupancy
rate and steady recurring revenue, the Group will continue to strive
for retention and expansion of existing quality tenants and target on
small- and medium-sized domestic quality tenants for new leases at

competitive rental strategies.

The 49% interests of the Company in Zhen Wah is an important
investment of the Group in view of the improving infrastructure and
upgrading surrounding area of the Land. Shareholders should be
assured that the Company has been adopting and will continue to adopt
the best available measures with a view to protecting the Company’s
interests in the context of the compulsory liquidation of Zhen Wah.

The issues involved in liquidation of Zhen Wah are however complex
and delicate, involving not only the PRC court but also various
governmental authorities. There is no assurance that the liquidation
may not be subject to significant delay, oppositions, obstructions and
further dispute or litigation with respect to the matters of Zhen Wah
and/or its assets. The Company will act proactively to protect its
interests.

APPRECIATION

The Board of Directors would like to thank the shareholders, bankers,
customers, suppliers of the Group and others who have extended their
invaluable support to the Group and all staff of the Group for their
considerable contributions to the Group in the year.

TAN Harry Chua

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 September 2016
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The brief biographical details of each Director under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and updated information on
Directors pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are as
follows:

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. TAN Harry Chua, aged 70, is the Chairman of the Board
nominated in 2013 and has been appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company since 2009. He is also a member and the chairman of
nomination committee of the Board and a member of remuneration
committee of the Board since 2013. He is primarily responsible for
overall strategic leadership and direction of the Group. He has over
44 years of senior managerial experience specialising in real estate,
banking, hotel, brewery, airline and security. He holds directorships in
various companies in Hong Kong, mainland China and the Philippines
including but not limited to a public company, LT Group, Inc. (“LT
Group”), securities of which are listed on The Philippine Stock
Exchange, Inc. (“PSE”). Besides, he previously was directors of other
public companies listed on the PSE, PAL Holdings, Inc. (“PAL”),
MacroAsia Corporation (“MacroAsia”) and Philippine National Bank
(“PNB”). He holds a bachelor degree in chemical engineering. He is
related to other Executive Directors of the Company being brother of
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank; uncle of Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao, Mr.
TAN Michael Gonzales, Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy and Mr. CHUA
Joseph Tan.

Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, aged 67, is the Chief Executive Officer
and Executive Director of the Company as appointed in 2006. He is
responsible for overall performance of the Group. He is also members
of the remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Board as well as directors of most subsidiaries of the Company. He
has over 30 years of senior managerial experience specialising in real
estate and banking. Over the years, he held senior positions as the
chief executive officers of Eton Properties (Holdings) Limited (“Eton”)
in Hong Kong and Oceanic Bank, a state chartered commercial bank
in San Francisco and vice chairman of Allied Banking Corporation
(Hong Kong) Limited (“Allied”), a restricted licensed bank in Hong
Kong. He holds a bachelor degree in applied science, a master degree
in business administration and an honorary doctorate in humane
letters. He is related to other Executive Directors of the Company
being brother of Mr. TAN Harry Chua; uncle of Mr. TAN Lucio Jr.
Khao, Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales, Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy and
Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan.

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016

11



12

PROFILE OF MANAGEMENT (Continued)
HEANB®f @

W ()
AT ES (A7)

Bk - BUAESORL » M — UL L FHEZE
ER/ARFRATESE - HATAEFTED
PR~ R T o IR B A W] — b e
N R ALFNE] (v B 1) BT JBS 2 m) Y 36 2 o A
WMERS 2 BHREMEE > EMEERE
Mo~ BRAT WG - MR~ A R K
7 o % 7ELT Group * PNB * PAL * MacroAsia
K Victorias Milling Company, Inc. ([ Victorias )
HAph A RN R MAEEERA > ZF LA
A8 5 P 3F TR W A B bl o NI R JE A
# W 1T Tanduay Distillers, Inc. 2 # &k & # & >
Ph & Eton Properties Philippines, Inc. 2 48 #& & A7
- I N L = N ]
Z WA AEAT S AT BORES © R A
TN B L 4 SRAE AR 2 B IR
R LR TR LB o B A AT 3 5
BR Ty BROK RS R BUK AR+ 2250
TAN Michael Gonzales 5% 2E 2 St 56 5 DA J ¢ 1E
JIE 5% 2E T2 CHUA Joseph Tan 56 4E 2 N S35 ©

TAN Michael Gonzales % 24 > Bl ££50 5% » J?
SRR EEEAAANTRNATES - K
A ALMERER - HELEH - I8 5
KA —HPBEMEARMES - FRA
W23 B SR > P HEF M E
SRAT ~ IS > MTAE -~ B R o A R ]
HEREIE AT 2 TH & SUFS > BLASLT Group 1 48
HEES BREE - PRERKERERE
% [81 /A 7 LA S FEPAL ~ MacroAsia, Victorias M
PNB Al 22 A2 7] AT 3 = o i 4 L T
WAL SEFE S ARG M IR - m BLFF
BFEM B A e (TIEEwE ) WEl -
[ ESRCWIIE N R R A = o N Y
1) FE ) RL B2 R A BB o A B AR N F) CH At B
T3 SRR 2y ¢ BRI P 2B R B S
ARG B BEEEZ W s ML LEIENE G
A= & CHUA Joseph Tan 56 4: 2 A W26 »

CE-EECFNEEER | A EEARA A

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao, aged 50, is an Executive Director of
the Company as appointed in 1997. He is in charge of business
development, investment and management of the Group. He is also
a director of a subsidiary of the Company in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). He has about 25 years of senior managerial
experience specialising in real estate, banking, hotel, brewery, airline,
milling and security. He holds directorships in other public companies,
LT Group, PNB, PAL, MacroAsia and Victorias Milling Company,
Inc. (“Victorias”), securities of which are all listed on PSE. And he
is the president and director of Tanduay Distillers, Inc. as well as the
president and chief executive officer of Eton Properties Philippines,
Inc. in the Philippines. He has held directors/senior executive
positions in various companies in Hong Kong, mainland China and
the Philippines. He holds a master degree in executive master of
business and administration program as well as a bachelor degree in
civil engineering. He is related to other Executive Directors of the
Company being nephew of Mr. TAN Harry Chua and Dr. CHAN
Wing Kit, Frank; brother of Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales; and brother-
in-law of Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy and Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan.

Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales, aged 50, is an Executive Director
of the Company as appointed in 2013. He is in charge of business
development, investment and management of the Group. He is also
a director of a subsidiary of the Company in the PRC. He has over
23 years of senior managerial experience specialising in real estate,
banking, hotel, airline, milling and brewery. He holds a number of
senior positions in various organisations and is the president and
director of LT Group, and is directors of various companies in Hong
Kong, mainland China and the Philippines as well as other public
companies, PAL, MacroAsia, Victorias and PNB. He previously
was the chairman of The Association of Young Filipino-Chinese
Entreprencurs and is currently the vice president of Federation
of Filipino-Chinese Chambers of Commerce and Industry, Inc.
(“FFCCCI”). He holds a bachelor degree of applied science in civil
engineering from University of British Columbia. He is related to
other Executive Directors of the Company, being the nephew of Mr.
TAN Harry Chua and Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank; the brother of Mr.
TAN Lucio Jr. Khao; and brother-in-law of Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy
and Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan.
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PROFILE OF MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy, aged 57, is an Executive Director of
the Company as appointed in 2006. He is in charge of business
development, investment and management of the Group. He is also a
director of a subsidiary of the Company in the PRC. He has over 34
years of senior managerial experience specialising in real estate and
manufacturing. He currently holds a senior executive position in Eton,
and serves as directors in several companies engaging businesses
of real estate, manufacturing and logistics in mainland China, Hong
Kong and the Philippines. He holds a bachelor degree in economics.
He is related to several Executive Directors, being married to the niece
of two other Executive Directors of the Company, namely, Mr. TAN
Harry Chua and Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank; and brother-in-law of
Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao, Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales and Mr. CHUA
Joseph Tan.

Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan, aged 60, is an Executive Director of the
Company as appointed with effect from 1 April 2016. He has over
30 years of senior managerial experience specialising in real estate,
banking, airline, mining, insurance and general management. Mr.
CHUA holds a number of senior positions in various organisations,
and holds directorships in several listed companies. At present and in
the past three years, he is and has been a director of LT Group, PAL,
PNB and MacroAsia, securities of which are listed on PSE. He is
also a director of PNB General Insurers Co., Inc. and Eton Properties
Philippines, Inc. He is a member of the Management Association
of the Philippines, Philippine Chamber of Commerce and Industry,
Chamber of Mines of the Philippines and German-Philippine Chamber
of Commerce and Industry. He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Economics
and a Bachelor of Science in Business Management from De La Salle
University, and Masters of Business Administration and International
Finance from the University of Southern California. He is related to
several Executive Directors, being married to the niece of Mr. TAN
Harry Chua and Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank; and is the brother-in-
law of Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao, Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales and Mr.
PASCUAL Ramon Sy.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan, aged 58, is an Executive Director of
the Company as appointed in 2007. He is also the financial controller
of the Group and directors of most subsidiaries of the Company. He
holds a master degree in business administration and has over 33 years
of senior managerial experience specialising in the field of real estate,
accounting and finance in Hong Kong and mainland China. Prior to
joining the Group in 1993, he worked at a major accounting firm and
held various senior accounting positions in property companies in

Hong Kong.
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth, aged 65, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company as appointed in 1994. He is also
the chairman of both audit committee and remuneration committee,
as well as a member of nomination committee of the Board. He is
a veteran in the jewellery business in which he has over 44 years of
senior managerial experience. He is managing a number of companies
engaged in diamond trading, jewellery manufacturing, wholesaling
and exports activities in Hong Kong and South East Asian countries.
Currently, he also serves as an independent non-executive director of
Allied.

Dr. SY Robin Chua, aged 81, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company as appointed in 1994. He is also members of
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee
of the Board. He is the president of Asian Shipping Corporation, a
shipowner engaged in shipping business in the Philippines and an
independent director of LT Group. He is also a lawyer and honorary
president of FFCCCI. He holds senior executive positions in some
companies engaged in shipbuilding and repairing business as well as
heavy construction equipment trading field in the Philippines.

Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John, aged 66, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company as appointed in 2010. He is also members of
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee
of the Board. He has over 45 years of senior managerial experience
specialising in banking business. Currently, he also serves as an
independent non-executive director of Allied. He holds doctor of
philosophy in corporate management, a master degree in business
administration and a bachelor degree in laws. He is an associate of
the Institute of Financial Accountants in United Kingdom, registered
financial planner of the Society of Registered Financial Planner in
Hong Kong and in mainland China as well as certified risk planner of
The Institute of Crisis and Risk Management in Hong Kong.
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PROFILE OF MANAGEMENT (Continued)
EHEAB

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. GO Patrick Lim, aged 58, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company as appointed in 2013. He is also a member
of audit committee of the Board. He is the chief executive officer of
Paramount Life & General Insurance Corporation and also serves as
an independent non-executive director of Allied. He has over 28 years
of senior managerial experience specialising in corporate finance and
private/public equity having worked for Credit Suisse First Boston,
Bank of America Asia Limited and Bankers Trust Company. He is
also a member of World Presidents Organization in Singapore and
a member of Singapore Institute of Directors. He holds a bachelor’s
degree in economics (Wharton) and a master degree in business
administration (Darden). He was formerly a director of Del Monte
Pacific Limited, which is listed on Singapore Exchange Limited and
independent director of Pancake House Inc., which is listed on the
PSE.

Mr. TAN Kenway Hao, aged 53, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company as appointed with effect from 1 April
2016. He has years of senior managerial experience specialising in
the real estate and hotel industry in the Philippines and engaging in
real estate industry in the PRC. He is currently managing a hotel in
the Philippines and is a member of Manila Chinatown Development
Council.
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The Directors have pleasure in
presenting their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 30 June 2016.

WITH INGENUITY
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
HRREH @

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities

of its principal subsidiaries are property investment and development.

The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2016 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 29.

On 8 January 2016, a final dividend of 3 Hong Kong cents per share
was paid to the Company’s shareholders as a final dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2015.

An interim dividend of 2.5 Hong Kong cents per share amounting to
HK$5,590,000 was paid to the shareholders of the Company during
the year. The Directors will consider, if thought fit, and recommend
the payment of a final dividend (if any) on 3 October 2016 as
announced by the Company on 20 September 2016.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The increase in the fair value of the investment properties which has
been credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income amounted to HK$83,076,000.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and

equipment and investment properties of the Group are set out in notes

15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital are set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016

17



18

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
HPERWHE @

S A O I b %

JRAEEBEN > ALY w] ST Ao B 2% ) M
W R O (e AR ] AR AT TR S

A 2 i) af 2y IR Gl

AN F ZE—NENHA = B A IR
T B R 2 f 5 B s 568,058,000 7T Z 1% B it

Fil -
g

AEERNREEAREEDW > ARXH

ZEFRWT
AT

B 7K W e A ()
B AN & (77 AR A )
B 1 BB e A
TAN Michael Gonzales /& 4=
w1 JIE S A
CHUA Joseph Tan 4t 4

(A ZFE—NFEMNH—HEZEE)
R B SE R

(A= F—AF+ _H+—HEMT
o R S A

(R —F—HFLH+ = BB

B JEPAT H A

HemlE A
SY Robin Chua f# -+
E AL
GO Patrick Lim 56 4
TAN Kenway Hao 5E 4=
(A ZFE—NFMHH—HEZ)

MPEA 2~ B 2 2 74 R 599 B 10245 - Bl Kk
A1+~ TAN Michael Gonzales /¢ 2E ~ 7E #f #
1% & J2 GO Patrick Lim 5 A= 78 #y 5 45 28 - 1
CHUA Joseph Tan 55 £ & TAN Kenway Hao /% /E
WAL F H 2 AN 6 B E KR ET R

8 25 2 i 7 388 AT

SER-EECE-ONEEER | N EEARA A

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
were the retained earnings of HK$68,058,000 as at 30 June 2016.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. TAN Harry Chua, Chairman
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao
Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy
Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan
(appointed on 1 April 2016)
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming
(retired on 11 December 2015)
Mr. WONG Sai Tat
(resigned on 13 July 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth

Dr. SY Robin Chua

Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John

Mr. GO Patrick Lim

Mr. TAN Kenway Hao
(appointed on 1 April 2016)

In accordance with Bye-Laws 99 and 102 of the Company’s Bye-
Laws, Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales, Dr.
FOK Kam Chu, John and Mr. GO Patrick Lim will retire by rotation,
and Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan and Mr. TAN Kenway Hao will hold
office until the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
and all being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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Name of Director

Wi KCIR e A Mr. TAN Harry Chua

BN Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank

B 2 2 5 A Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao

N SE A4 Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy
D s ek Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan
HERIE ek Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
SY Robin Chuaffi+:  Dr. SY Robin Chua

EMHEEL Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John

GO Patrick Lim 7t 4= Mr. GO Patrick Lim
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

All Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed,
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-Law 99, for a term of two years and they have confirmed their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 30 June 2016, the interests and short positions held by the
Directors or the chief executive(s) of the Company or any of their
associates in the shares of the Company (‘“Shares”), shares of any of
its associated corporations and underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

AT AT AR B
% 8 H il ) R e A8 W A
PN £ 0\ 2 CHAT A
(B £) (B £) HA A

Personal Personal
interests in interests in Total
number of underlying interests as
issued ordinary Shares approximate
Shares of pursuant to percentage
the Company share options Aggregate of issued
(long position)  (long position) interests share capital
(Hfit—) (Hfit =)
(Note i) (Note ii)
636,000 1,500,000 2,136,000 0.95%
- 1,650,000 1,650,000 0.74%
- 1,500,000 1,500,000 0.67%
80,000 1,500,000 1,580,000 0.70%
1,000,000 - 1,000,000 0.45%
- 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.45%
- 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.45%
746,000 - 746,000 0.33%
- 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.45%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

i The Directors’ interests in the underlying Shares are through share options granted
by the Company on 25 October 2011 under the 2001 Scheme and 10 November
2015 under the 2011 Scheme respectively, details of which are set out in note 25
to the consolidated financial statements.

ii. The calculation is derived from the aggregate interests as a percentage of the total
number of issued Shares of the Company (i.e. 224,418,681 Shares) as at 30 June
2016.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2016, none of the Directors,
the chief executive(s) of the Company or any of their associates had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed above, none
of the Directors, the chief executive(s) of the Company or any of their
associates had been granted or exercised any rights to subscribe for
any equity or debt securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) during the
year ended 30 June 2016.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Particulars of the share option schemes of the Company are set out in

note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.
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B B BE RT3 (41 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
NS PR A B AR N B R EHE The following table discloses the movements of share options of the
s Company during the year:
ARHESH
Number of share options
B %A% REER O REER O REER A%
fitiet  th—H il it %% AR=TH
Exercise At Granted  Exercised Lapsed At
price 1 July during during during 30 June
Grantees Date of grant BHHH per share 2015 the year the year the year 2016
f’gﬁf
HKS
2001 Scheme 00143
Directors fis
Mr. TAN Harry Chua PRk G 250ctober 2011~ —F——4+AZ+HH 113 1,500,000 - - ~ 1,500,000
Dr.CHAN WingKit, WAL 25 October 2011 —F——4+H ~+HH
Frank 113 1,650,000 - - - 1,650,000
Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao ~ BEf& 2 45 250ctober 2011~ —F——4+H-+HH 113 1,500,000 - - — 1,500,000
Mr. PASCUAL HIEIENAE 250ctober 2011~ —F——4+H-+HH
Ramon Sy 113 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, M BRE 25 October 2011 —F——4E+f ~ %
Allan 113 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) - -
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, ~ #E413 Jt: 250ctober 2011~ —F——4+H=+LH
Kenneth 113 1,000,000 - - ~ 1,000,000
Dr. SY Robin Chua SY Robin Chuafif - 25 October 2011~ =% ——4+H =+ H 113 1,000,000 - - ~ 1,000,000
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 7 §HE fli4: 250ctober 2011~ “F——4+A=+HH 113 700,000 - (700,000) - -
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming ~ #5H 2k 250ctober 2011~ —F——4+H -+ILH
(retired on (R4
11 December 2015) +-H+—H
BT 113 1,500,000 - —(1,500,000) -
Mr. WONG Sai Tat FitE g 250ctober 2011~ —F——4+A=+TIH
(resigned on (RZF—TE
13 July 2015) tA+=H
RHE) 113 1,000,000 — (1,000,000) - -
Substantial shareholders - ELJRt 3
Dr. TAN Lucio C. TANLuco C.flfi+ 25 October 2011 —F——4E+HZ+HH 113 2,190,000 - - — 2,190,000
Mrs. TAN Carmen K.~ TAN CamenK &0 25 October 2011 —F——4+J ~+ %A LI3 2,190,000 - - ~ 2,190,000
Mr. CHUA Domingo BRI 250ctober 2011~ —F——4+H=+HH 113 1,800,000 - - — 1,800,000
Employees in aggregate & H A & 250ctober 2011 —ZF——4+H-+0H 113 3,070,000 - (2,315,000) - 755,000
21,600,000 — (50150000 (1,500,000) 15,085,000
2011 Scheme 201145+
Director f s
Mr. GO Patrick Lim GOParick Lim/&4 10 November 2015 —%—F 4 +—A+H 3.05 ~ 1,000,000 - — 1,000,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

Notes:

i The share options granted on 25 October 2011 under 2001 Scheme may be
exercised from 25 October 2011 to 24 October 2019 with no vesting period. The
closing price of the Shares on 24 October 2011 (the day immediately before the
date of grant) was HK$1.12.

ii. The share options granted on 10 November 2015 under 2011 Scheme may be
exercised from 10 November 2015 to 24 October 2019 with no vesting period. The
closing price of the Shares on 9 November 2015 (the day immediately before the
date of grant) was HK$3.05.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as described in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate and none
of the Directors of the Company, their spouses or children under the
age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such rights during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following
Directors of the Company are considered to have interests in
businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

Mr. TAN Harry Chua, Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, Mr. TAN Lucio
Jr. Khao, Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales, Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy,
Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan and Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming (retired on
11 December 2015) held interests and/or directorship in companies
engaged in the businesses of property investment and development in
Hong Kong and/or the mainland China.

As the Board of Directors is independent from the boards of the
said companies, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of such
companies.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements,
no contract of significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had
material interests, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 30 June 2016, so far as is known to any Director or chief
executive(s) of the Company, persons (other than the Directors or
the chief executive(s) of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

ot
HERA X MR
BB MRl CRiRAN
(4 8) (#8)  TAKHY
Number of
issued ordinary Total interests
Shares and as approximate
underlying percentage
Shares  Total interests of issued
Capacity (long position)  (long position) share capital
(W)
(note v)
BKCR Dr. TAN Lucio C. MA2HERETLZ  Founder of a private 89,321,279 93,701,279 41.75%
B A discretionary trust
BEHHA N g Beneficial owner oy 2,190,000
IR Family interests o 2,190,000
TAN Carmen K. % 1: Mrs. TAN Carmen K. FIEWER s Family interests e 91,511,279 93,701,279 41.75%
A Nz Beneficial owner pureiy 2,190,000
Dynamic Development Dynamic Development E:2 2N Beneficial owner 89,321,279 89,321,279 39.80%
Corporation Corporation
Carnation Investments Inc. ~ Carnation Investments Inc. FAZHEREZ  Trustee of a private 89,321,279 89,321,279 39.80%
AN discretionary trust oreiiy
KR Mr. CHUA Domingo ANFIMER am Corporate interests i 89,321,279 95,121,279 42.39%
HHEA N e Beneficial owner jureiy 5,800,000
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F R Z B g B R A ()

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

Mt

B £ SR 48R 4L

B 7 4 1 1 B 25 15 A 2,190,000 A% AR BE A 03 19 A7 A=
HE 4% o H 2 18 TAN Carmen K. % + £ 452,190,000 /B
AR B B 035 00 T A AR o AR % G I B T L
By Bl Wl E VR B LK i HE 25 (% P TAN Carmen K. &
TR R AR ) B AT % B O R AR o

TAN Carmen K. % 1= B % £ 42,190,000 /& A BH 1% 173
B AT 76 RE 2 o HL A BRI Rk B DURL N B A
7B 2 WAL N B 0 R A AR 2 189,321,279 AR 0 HE 4
J%2,190,000 5 A1 B A 0 9 77 26 RE 5 > AR BE A% A 1
TAN L £ B 4 #1 Jb 3500k 1 25 DA R B 4 (5 op
Bl i R 1 15 A RE 4 ) B O R A R I A RE AR o

Carnation Investments Inc. A A N 2 #E {5 5E 2 {5 5E A
£+ 4 ¥ 45 Dynamic Development Corporation [t 4= 5 £
BEAT A > it Carnation Investments Inc. & ¥ % {F 5
FEA A2 789,321,279 1B 13 HE it o

SRELT Sfe A 2 /A WIHE 4 T %% # Dynamic Development
Corporation [fii £ 47 > 1fii Carnation Investments Inc. i] 2
% A Dynamic Development Corporation ° %% %2 ] /¢
4 J5 Carnation Investments Inc. M — A% 3 J2 # 5 o 4%
BW] e A B g AT 1,800,000 JBEAH B B 3 1 4T A HE

Y
m ©

FEELAL SR YA M 5 AU AR R T N AR
ANH=Z1H Z B AT B0 48 % (R1224,418,681 it
) BB -

A BBk F L  TAN Carmen K. £ - 2882
J& 4 - Dynamic Development Corporation /% Carnation
Investments Inc. & 4% 2 7] #3547 HE 45 5 4 1 o 7547
R fii 189,321,279 B 13 49 23 [7] — L AC 433 o

AT —RNENA =

Tt H o A R R HOR 12 5% R B A 336 kA R
AR 2 B A M A A L (AR
R R AT BN BERAN) B A 6 AR B
e 3 A AT 2 SR AT

—HEZR-RFEREER | RN EEARAA

iil.

Vi.

Dr. TAN Lucio C. beneficially held 2,190,000 underlying Shares as derivative
interests. Dr. TAN, being the spouse of Mrs. TAN Carmen K. who was interested
in 2,190,000 underlying Shares as derivative interests, was deemed or taken to be
interested in such Shares as family interests in which Mrs. TAN Carmen K. was
interested under the SFO.

Mrs. TAN Carmen K. beneficially held 2,190,000 underlying Shares as derivative
interests. Mrs. TAN, being the spouse of Dr. TAN Lucio C. who was interested
in 89,321,279 Shares of the Company as a founder of a private discretionary trust
and 2,190,000 underlying Shares as derivative interests, was deemed or taken to
be interested in such Shares as family interests in which Dr. TAN Lucio C. was
interested under the SFO.

Carnation Investments Inc. was taken to be interested in 89,321,279 Shares in the
Company as the entire issued share capital of Dynamic Development Corporation
was held by Carnation Investments Inc. as trustee for a private discretionary trust.

The corporate interests of Mr. CHUA Domingo were held through Dynamic
Development Corporation. Dynamic Development Corporation is wholly-owned
by Carnation Investments Inc. Mr. CHUA Domingo is the sole shareholder and
director of Carnation Investments Inc. Mr. CHUA Domingo beneficially held
1,800,000 underlying Shares as derivative interests.

The calculation is derived from the aggregate interests as a percentage of the total
number of issued Shares of the Company (i.e. 224,418,681 Shares) as at 30 June
2016.

The references to 89,321,279 Shares in the Company in which Dr. TAN Lucio C.,
Mrs. TAN Carmen K., Mr. CHUA Domingo, Dynamic Development Corporation
and Carnation Investments Inc. were interested or taken to be interested relate to
the same block of Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2016, no other person (other

than the Directors and the chief executive(s) of the Company) had

any interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

At 30 June 2016, the Group had about 50 employees (including
Directors) in Hong Kong and the mainland China at prevailing market
remuneration with employee benefits such as medical insurance,

provident fund schemes and share option schemes.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is recommended
by the remuneration committee of the Company on the basis of
the respective merits, responsibilities and duties, performance,
qualifications and competence taking into account of comparable
market level, operating results of the Group, corporate goals and
objectives of the Board of Directors and relevant legal requirements,
provisions, guidelines and recommendations of regularly bodies.

The emoluments of the respective Directors of the Company are
recommended by the remuneration committee of the Company, having
regard to the operating results of the Group, corporate goals and
objectives, individual performance and responsibility and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as incentive to
Directors and eligible employees. Details of the schemes are set out in
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of the revenue attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers in aggregate was less than 22% of the
total revenue of the Group and the percentage of purchases attributable
to the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate was less than 51% of
the total cost of sales of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as at the date
of this report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 30 June 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 30 June
2016 with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules save for the derivation as disclosed in the “Corporate
Governance Report”. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 107 to 120.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank
Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 September 2016



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

T ST A% B o

Deloitte.
=E)

Bk Jy 4R W AR 5 5 4 B R
(1 B 5 Gt Ml o2 2 AR 2 A])

M FZIN R ZE N EBARAFA (BLF
Fﬁﬁﬂﬁ"ﬁj ) B FCHE & A/ (LA & T
BM ) NS MBIRES29 2103 H - AR
EMBREGHER F—XNFNH=TH
F) % B BA S IR D 2% B AR & 5% HOR AR ) 45
GHEm A HM RIS R GRS
KAGEHEMEER > UL T EGFEOR
IR B2 T L Ath B 5 fo 2 R o

o 240 R S T B R EUAUR I 9 AT

BArEHHARRBEEE G WA EH
i 09 7 5 B 5 o v ) % 4 IR o O D AR
1 B 45 B 0 E A AR A B IR IE > DA &
A B R TE AR R T R 3 7

LR S B A S I R JE T A6 Y A
el > DL &5 A B IR TE R AT AE R G
B B R T A B R B R B -

B i 1y 35 4E

A AL R AR AT F B F LS
MBS AR AR B - MRS R IRE
TN R0 > M AR (B — (R )
T A 5> SIS o H A AR AT A o FAM I A ik
AR A 2 TR AT T E Al A R A R B
HZFAE - WA CARIEF 0 & 5k A g
i B 7 o 2wt e R AT AL o E e e A B
SR 7 7B R A0 AT
VL BHL R E £ A TS R TE R N AF A AT AT
R G AR BRAL

TO THE MEMBERS OF DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dynamic
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”™) set out on pages 29 to 103, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2016, and
of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 September 2016



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A B A S Al 4 T i AR

BEZZ-ANEAA ST HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2016

A TR N e 2
NOTES 2016 2015
BT T BT T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
A Revenue 7 103,870 103,437
B A Direct costs (19,899) (20,981)
eVl Gross profit 83,971 82,456
H Al i g K e 18 Other gains or losses 8 6,266 23,648
BB W) 2 FAE 2 B Increase in fair value of investment
properties 16 83,076 57,224

17 B Administrative expenses (25,698) (23,682)
B B 2 H Selling expenses (792) (479)
il & A Finance costs 9 (4,243) (4,791)
HaAEZ ER S Share of loss of a joint venture (9,812) (12,020)
%% 56 7 Ve A Profit before taxation 10 132,768 122,356
B IH Taxation 12 (36,652) (18,891)
A AE J Y Profit for the year 96,116 103,465
AT i HoAh A T (3 ) Other comprehensive (expense)

e A income for the year

AT H A HTE Item that will not be reclassified
A ZHH - subsequently to profit or loss:
WMEEE B2 Exchange differences on translation
[ 5, 72 %8 to presentation currency (164,681) 13,092

AAE AT (L H) Total comprehensive (expense) income

N K| for the year (68,565) 116,557
A4 i U R R A - Profit for the year attributable to:

ENYNEIE: Z SN Owners of the Company 95,085 101,586

I FE I HE 25 Non-controlling interests 1,031 1,879

96,116 103,465

AAE AT () Total comprehensive (expense) income

WA KR FEIEAG attributable to:

ENUNEIE: SN Owners of the Company (66,749) 114,451

I P2 REAE 25 Non-controlling interests (1,816) 2,106

(68,565) 116,557

R B A) (I Al) Earnings per share (Hong Kong cents) 14

A Basic 42.7 46.3

#E Diluted 40.7 435
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SRR YIS

R -ANEANN=1H
At 30 June 2016

bt 7 TR N —E N
NOTES 2016 2015
BT T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
e B A Non-current Assets
Y~ IR kAl Property, plant and equipment 15 1,743 2,012
BEmE Investment properties 16 1,926,240 2,000,101
G ERE A Interest in a joint venture 17 71,570 94,467
EBAERK Amount due from a joint venture 17 235,184 239,924
SRAT HEAT AT K Pledged bank deposits 29 - 2,278
2,234,737 2,338,782
L W) % Current Assets
frEY 2 Properties held for sale 18 15,947 17,440
A M Wi R 3K Loan receivables 19 - _
B 5y T o Ath 1 i H 3¢ Trade and other receivables 20 17,589 14,815
FE H5E B % 3R R 3K Amount due from a non-controlling 20
shareholder 895 970
SRATHEAR A7 K Pledged bank deposits 29 14,249 5210
SRAT E B AE K Fixed bank deposits 20 161,121 167,844
SRAT & M B 4 Bank balances and cash 20 83,598 84,985
293,399 291,264
it ) £ 4 Current Liabilities
B G B o Ath JBE A BR 3K Trade and other payables 21 61,670 62,206
JRE A B JH Tax payable 96,800 102,231
SRATEK — Bank loans — 22
JHN — N fE R due within one year 149,593 7,600
308,063 172,037
Wl (£ %) % BT Net Current (Liabilities) Assets (14,664) 119,227
% e 48 D U D £ 48 Total Assets less Current Liabilities 2,220,073 2,458,009
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Conined)
AR BRI 4

R_Z—NEAA=TH
At 30 June 2016

Wi CR—AE CFLAE
NOTES 2016 2015
BT Vo T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
AN K ik A Capital and Reserves
il&N Share capital 23 224,419 219,404
i e Reserves 1,677,927 1,755,390

AR 2 v BEAT N ME AN BE 2% Equity attributable to owners of the

Company 1,902,346 1,974,794

I e BE 2% Non-controlling interests 34,154 36,572

B 2 Total Equity 1,936,500 2,011,366

LR T 11 Non-current Liabilities

AT E K — Bank loans — 22

JHI — R E R due after one year - 164,592

I S Fd JE B fE Deferred tax liabilities 24 283,573 282,051

283,573 446,643

2,220,073 2,458,009

BT I3 E 2 &AM RIEE =& The consolidated financial statements on pages 29 to 103 were
—ANENA=Z+THHEEEAZ LZMET  approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30

o> Wl FHIESFARRESE September 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:
HH HH TAN Harry Chua CHAN Wing Kit, Frank
Bl K i Bl ok A% DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A B LR S ) %

BEZZ-ANEAA ST HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Tty

Share

A

Special
reserve

g3
i
Capital
redemption
reserve

LYLE SN
Attributable to owners of the Company
AR

i

Share

FER
s
Non-

controlling
interests

5 Kds kb R it

Other
reserve

Retained
profits

Translation
reserve

Statutory

reserve
T

Sub-total

HKS000

REF-WELA—H At July 2014 219404 426759 55018 1,644 381,719 8,100 92451 748 678970 1871313 34466 1,905,719
R Profit for the year - - - - - - - 101,586 101,586 1879 103,465
EnEtz BhHEH Exchange differences arising

on translation - - - - 12,865 - - - 12,865 i) 13,092
EEATRALE Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - - 12,865 - - 101,586 114451 2,106 116,557
i Transfer - - - - - - 1,039 (1,039) = = =
RARE (W £5%)  Cashdividends (note 13) = - - - - - - (10970)  (10.970) - (10970)
REZ-HEAA=TA  At30June2015 219404 426759 55018 1,644 394,584 8,100 92451 8287 768,547 1974794 36572 2011366
EERA Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 95,085 95,085 1,031 96,116
SN LVa LF | Exchange differences arising

o transltion - - - S8 - - - C6LBY M) (l6481)
EEAT (1) Total comprehensive (expense)

A4 income for the year - - - - 68 - - S (@619 (816 (6565
DEGEABRM AR Recognition of equity-settled

ft 2 ik share-based payments - - - - - 90 - - - 90 - 90
friEARiEL Issue of shares upon exercise

b 3 of share options 5015 2533 - - - (1,881) - - - 5,667 - 5,667
ARELH Lapse of share options - - - - - (563) - - 563 - - -
i Transker - - - - - - - 1,155 (1,159) - - -
FHERRRZ Cash dividend to a non-

RaRA controlling shareholder - - - - - - - - - - (602) (602)
BAWE (it #13%)  Cashdividends (nore 13) - - - - - - - (1296 (122%) - (1229
REZ-AEANZTH At30 June 2016 24419 429292 55,018 1,644 232,750 6,586 92451 9442 850,744 1,902,346 34054 1936,500

Vg3 Notes:

(F) AR ] 2 05 I ot 5 T A B8 5 i 48 1] o0 4 BT i I 2 (a) The special reserve of the Group arose from the difference between the aggregate
FAE J 2 ) R 2 A~ R i A - — A A A R R amount of the then share capital, share premium, general reserve and retained
BR Vis | 2 48 (8 BiL A N =) s A B < TE T RS AT 2 IR profits of the subsidiaries acquired, and the nominal amount of the Company‘s
THI (B M) 2 2R A o shares issued for the acquisition in relation to a previous group reorganisation.

() AEBFEZ HAREHEIIHEAER A ARAN A A (b) The other reserve of the Group represents deemed contributions from equity
ANz M E BT NENH =T I ERE holders of the Company which arose from the difference between the fair value
A > AT S RE AR 2 N B (R B A i B R of consideration paid and payable and the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
BT AR EE - A RSRRAE liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired through acquisition of the subsidiaries
ZEHANVEMEMZ EZFETELE - during the year ended 30 June 2006.

(7)) 5 B vk A el 3% 2 3k o b A 2 0 288 10 S AR 2 ) (©) The statutory reserve transferred from retained profits are required by relevant

CE-EEF-ANEEER |

R AR ([ e B L) Y b6 2 ) 2 I A
EHRER T HUE

2 ) 4 A PR A

People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) laws and regulations applicable to the
Company’s PRC subsidiary.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
A B Bl A

BEZZ-ANEAA ST HILEE
For the year ended 30 June 2016

RN A
2016 2015
BT Vo T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
BEEH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
o 38 T i A Profit before taxation 132,768 122,356
R Adjustments for:
FLE A Interest income (17,195) (21,410)
it g7E /NS (=R Increase in fair value of investment properties (83,076) (57,224)
e Depreciation 184 161
W - B (Gain) loss on disposal/written off of property,
R (Ui ) JEs 4E plant and equipment (14) 5
JHE Wt B 2 e R Impairment loss (reversed) recognised in
T AE M R (45 1)) respect of receivables (110) 153
DAY 2 BE 5 2 fF 7K 528 Share-based payment expense 930 =
il AR Finance costs 4,243 4,791
BB EZ ER Share of loss of a joint venture 9,812 12,020
R 2 ME IR (frgs)  Unrealised exchange loss (gain), net
T #E 13,661 (1,053)
SHEESETA 2 Operating cash flows before movements in
BB & TR working capital 61,203 59,799
B Ly R Ath JE i B 38 T Increase in trade and other receivables 3,957) (2,522)
F o K HALREAT BEZIE I Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables
(W) 4,396 (883)
KE RS 2 Bl Cash generated from operations 61,642 56,394
2 A A B T 15 B PRC Income Tax paid (10,623) (10,338)
KAMBEH 2B 4E % NET CASH FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 51,019 46,056
B H INVESTING ACTIVITIES
B A S Interest received 3,524 5,838
WA [ A K R K Loan receivables recovered 110 _
HEY - s K Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and
Jir 15 2K 35 equipment 35 =
A SRAT R A7 3K Placement of pledged bank deposits (7,553) -
17 A SRAT 72 A A7 3K Placement of fixed bank deposits (13,775) (125,701)
INEYE - R R Purchase of property, plant and equipment (84) (186)
B [\ 84T 28 WA 3K Withdrawal of fixed bank deposits 5,145 39,798
AR [\ SR AT HE T AE 3K Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits - 18,260
HRBEWE B 2B &% % NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES (12,598) (61,991)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
HEBEEE @

BREZR-ANEANAZTHIEEE
For the year ended 30 June 2016

TR N —E N

2016 2015

BT Vo T

HKS$’000 HK$°000

ik %6 35 ) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

17 BB R ME 2 B 88 47 Issue of shares upon exercise of share options 5,667 =
B 4 SRAT B GRIE Repayment of bank loans (23,000) (27,000)
e i B Dividends paid (12,296) (10,970)
EE RPN Interest paid (3,842) (4,448)
B AT FF i 1% A SR A B Dividends paid to a non-controlling shareholder (602) =

WA Ew B 28438  NET CASH USED IN FINANCING

ACTIVITIES (34,073) (42,418)
B4 RB A5 MM NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
(W) 8 AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4,348 (58,353)
AEW 2B 4 BB %1E CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 84,985 142,676
A BE S8 R S B 2 5 EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGE (5,735) 662

BB ERBIE S CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE END OF THE YEAR,
DVERAT 45 % e Bl & R OR represented by bank balances and cash 83,598 84,985
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o U 20 B I i

BREZZ-ANEANAZTHIEEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

1.

BBE 2L % A ok 0 e 4 A0 ot

Ay ) AR T RS R AR A BT 2 52 H R
AR A H By 72 s kA 5 B B
ARRAE (TBZER]) £/ LT - AR
GRS Y A &3-S Tk ]
IAERF AR LBEEEER]A -

AAE B —HEEER A HER
Wi I > 7 2 SEH I W) S BOE B

AnmZHREE WA AR (AR
Wl o RAAFEHEEARF L
B AEN (T#W)) AREGE
FIRHE > UG M IRELIER 25

e A A M IRER  EFERE
EEALEEMARKZHEE S - AEH
TEE—-ARNENA=ZTHWKE A&
A e RR A £ s 114,664,000 7T 0 H R
A 45 [ A FE A KRR 8 T R R R 1 3 4
Wi A DA K m] iR 1 o ok #) A R AT &
KL > HE SN T M A SR B AR AT
Tl % 21 1A IRE DAL A M 3k B Ak 1
FEHA (AN B ) > B A A
A AT VI 2l i A0 A HL 3 0 ) B S
1o Fe > %A MBS R TE 7E FR A A0 8
B FEBE T 4R o

1.

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION
OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “Corporate and Investors Information” in the
annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are property investment

and development.

The Company’s functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKS”) as the Directors of the Company consider that
Hong Kong dollar is the most appropriate presentation currency

in view of the Company’s place of listing.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
have given careful consideration to the future liquidity of
the Group. While recognising that the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately HK$14,664,000 at 30 June 2016, the
Directors are of the opinion the Group will be able to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due for the foreseeable future
as the Group has sufficient and steady projected future cash
inflow and available unutilised bank borrowing facilities. And
the Directors expect to renew the existing banking facilities
on similar terms and conditions when the existing banking
facilities of the Group mature (if necessary). Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going

concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Ao A 2 R T PR R ()
BREZR-ANEANAZTHIEEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

2. MERIB T K 8050 7 8 65
i M J) (1 7 o 3o 05 8 o e 1 1)

1

AR > AEBRG REERM TSI
M kA g (0 a1 at A
B 1) WM LA W oR A ROk R T X AR AE AT
T s P i T

EEMEREENEE  2MTHE
EEMEREEAFISE  FFaAZRE

MG ENS 6% AR

B it M DA 0y B 3L 2
H0%E (BT A) Vs V. &in-d
it M IR IR AL BB 4R 2
B (BT A) &b
it M i T U T St o e 56
B15% (BFT4) ISREFAHZ I
i 1B !
it it Bt

F1E (AT A)
i g w165 1 HEYS HDE Ty

it G ] BB

553898 (57T A)

it BB s T it BT W T A

Bl (BFTA) B St
“E-NER
EE S

Eh et EAE IR REE RE: AEEHEY
GRS 415E (BFTA)
EEMEREENFI0%  HEFEARFELA

R G HABAFAZHZ
0848 (7T 4) B Eg A
FHMEREEAF0 - BEER: BHES
i M e Al A2 BIAME B
51098 LA G

50855 (B3T4)

it it P gt o
EE AL HEN

it it PR EE R ERE
B8 (BT A) FEBIAE S

L R F— NFE— A — SRR B IR 2 R
M) 2R 2%

2 RoFE—RNE—A—ARZE 2B R
A2 7 s B T o v B B B R O A 2K

3 M ZE—RAE—H— AR KB 2 4%

R AE 2

4 A TR E H A B2 1% B R 22 4F B2 2R
5&

s ZFENAE—H - B ZBBG
%@FEﬁéE%l

6 AT —LAE— A — A2 BB R 2 AE
R AE 2

SER-EESF-NEEER | ZOEEARA A

P

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has not early adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9
HKEFRS 15

HKEFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Financial Instruments!

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers!

Leases®

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers!

Disclosure Initiative’

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation®

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception?

Disclosure Initiatives

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses’

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or

after 1 January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
‘ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
© Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

W 590 ) B 486 T A 8 M 5
e (1 7 o S 5 o e 1 1)

(%)

78 I SR 1SR [ % P & Al
it |

A s A5 0 E T 5F 1S BE O AR A
Hoil g — YE B — 4 A R B T AR
o E B F &R E R 2 g AR o iR
A B O E RS 1S SR A AR 0
A R B 2 Wit AR AR 51 > AR
WwE R ER SR8t | - B g R
WA ZE LG4 | RARBR @R -

A B 5 e YE A 1S R 2 A0 SRR
oy B T AR 1) 2 SRR G B A B
ke 35 4 2t 2 4R e AE o T 2 BE S R R
T B U 5 R w2 S B A IR B A
EHR2AE - BEWS - ZEAIIA

T A e RR i 2 2 AP B

s B WHBRERZEH

 WIH T WAlERR 2B EE

- W= ERELHEE

o SR MRS EE S EES AP
ZBH A

< SBEP A E MR A AL R

(B IE) Al A8 U AR

AR A TS o R A5 BE o T
T 58 BB %) FAT R (EROBE L) e R U
g > B E JB A TAE A B 2 & B
W #5 2 [ £l 4 ) W3 T % 5 B o 7
B R ME R R 1S SR E AR RIS I 2
B BT i M E W R 5] o Bk -
ik T 5 S v BB 1S SR B E AE i B

% -

P

A T B R T PR R ()
BRER-ANEANAZTH IR
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the related

interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for goods
and services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step

approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with customer

» Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

» Step 3: Determine the transaction price

» Step4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

» Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies

a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, that is when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Ao B P 5 MR TEL I 5 40

BREZR-ANEANAZTHIEEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS
17 “Leases”, introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is
required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing
its obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee
should recognise depreciation of the right-of-use asset and
interest on the lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments
of the lease liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the statement of cash flows.
Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially
measured on a present value basis. The measurement includes
non-cancellable lease payments and also includes payments to
be made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise an option to extend the lease, or not to exercise
an option to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is
significantly different from the lessee accounting for leases that
are classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. In respect of
the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly,
a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases
differently.

Other than the recognition of right-of-use asset, its related
depreciation and lease liabilities under revised HKFRS 16 for
future lease payments under operating leases as set out in note
27, the Directors anticipate that the application of these new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the Group’s

financial performance and positions.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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A T B R T PR R ()
BRER-ANEANAZTH IR
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

The disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules
regarding annual accounts have been amended with reference to
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) regarding
preparation of accounts and directors’ reports and audits and
to streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation
and disclosure of information in the consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016 have been
changed to comply with these new requirements. Comparative
information in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2015
is presented or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements
based on the new requirements. Information previously required
to be disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but
not under the new CO or amended Listing Rules is not disclosed
in these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties that are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies

set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods or services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the

Company:
. has power over the investee;
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and
. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into

line with those used by other members of the Group.
All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses

and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interest in a joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of a joint venture are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
an investment in a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the joint venture. When the
Group’s share of losses of a joint venture equals or exceeds its
interest in that joint venture, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which

the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in a joint venture. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interest in a joint venture (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be a joint venture, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for
sale.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group,
profits or losses resulting from the transactions with the joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the joint venture that

are not related to the Group.
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property are included in

profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards

of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised
as income in the period in which they are earned.

In the event that lease incentives are granted to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as assets. The
aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of
rental income on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are diminished.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of a lease including both
land and building elements as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost comprises the property interest in
leasehold land and development costs including attributable
borrowing costs capitalised.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make

the sale.
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from the “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interest in a joint venture, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the
above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items

carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the group entity with
functional currency of Renminbi are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits plans in
Hong Kong and the PRC and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong are charged as
expenses when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets or financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are loans and receivables. Loans
and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including amount due from a joint venture, loan receivables,
trade and other receivables, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder, bank deposits and bank balances) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net

carrying amount on initial recognition.
Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016

49
|



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Ao A 2 R T PR R ()
BREZR-ANEANAZTHIEEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

3. EBEFEEOR @)

EWMTH ()
BB E ()

& B 1 ()

W FBEE TR

o BT ARG F B ik E
GSfE

o BB HNR AR A R S R A S
B7R 4 3K TE 5 B

o fEEON AT BE S AT B E B
4 o

WA & B R A E B (E
B3k (6 s 4R & A HE 45 0 e AR o 3 4 A
B 7 IR T (B B o BB R E JRUEL PR R
HMWB 2 MAF KRB SR BB EWE
ZERGTR -

& A R T (B AR T A R
{E G 10 B BT DL - B SO R
KM H T B FE A e iR Bk 2 R T (RN
2RO B AR T LA o S IR
R TH L 5 ) 7 4L R A0 SR o ik 6 K
W R K % B oy T G Al B AR K AL 2
e 3 i (B RS B A AR O B o HOAR
W [|] 48 4 O 8 < ROH - REACBE R
A o

A AR 9 ] (L AR PR BRI o T
A T Bl A0 AT b B e R (A% R
Cora R iR P RE R PR RN 7
1595 38 18 45 85 10 > M % A el e 4
(] 5 H 2 R T S A5 R R e B 9 (L
Z B A

50 SER-EESF-NEEER | ZOEEARA A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of loan receivables and trade and other receivables,
where the carrying amounts are reduced through the use of
allowance accounts. Changes in the carrying amounts of the
allowance accounts are recognised in profit or loss. When loan
receivables and trade and other receivables are considered
uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance
accounts. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written

off are credited against the allowance account.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
bank loans) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its

liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a

debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not
designated as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of
obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the

contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Sales of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the following conditions

are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the properties, which
is when the construction of relevant properties has been
completed, upon delivery, and collectability of related
receivables is reasonably assured;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the properties are

sold;
. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with

the transaction will flow to the Group; and
. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Deposits and instalments received from purchasers prior to
meeting all the above criteria for revenue recognition are
included in the consolidated statement of financial position

under current liabilities.

Others

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the period in

which they are earned.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income
from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial

asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if

any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B HHEOR 4

AT ¥ A WAE (A7)

i Ay 1 B 2 BROHR & A AR B A 2 T i (]
S RRAR P HC R T (E o PN % E B
4 E AR B (07 MR TRT (L W0 2 L AT i [R]
HH o R R B R RE R A S -

TP [E] 458 ek E R 1R RS > B (BB
B3 ) 2 B TR T W e R R E 2 Al
AERT R[] e MR T R R B (B
B A B AR T 4R BE R R BU(E B
{5 T 2 JR T (B 985 9] 2 98 {BL s 12 T B
IR B e 8 A LA

L2393

WARERETI AR > AEWAZ
w ECRLREE o A BRI R SR
FE Jo FLHhE R o B Y o

DL B4y 2y 2 0 2 A K 38 B

T 08 1 2 32 05 50 0L I 485 1y BT I 2 2
e HlE

2 75 B JBCHE 2 V- (6 T 78 A2 1Y) B 2 IR 5
KB TE FR A HEAE 4%t H R R =
A BIVIRE AR B Ay S Bl 2 A ARS8 -
TE 58 FBCHE foff M 1F KB 38 0 o

R PR AT 8 R o A T Y R HE ok
i B RR 2 UM o A O
B o B BB BCHE Y B B H A% A R MK
TR JeE SR 7 R AT DA R R
HE ol A A0 e W 2 < M O R B U
A o

A T B R T PR R ()
BRER-ANEANAZTH IR
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an

expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.
Contingent asset

A contingent asset is not recognised until the realisation
of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not
contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate.

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees and consultants providing

similar services

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted and vested at the grant
date is expensed as share-based payment expenses immediately
on the date of grant, with a corresponding increase in share
option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to retained profits.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the

VB H ) B~ Al SF AR BT o Al T S A B carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily

B R T AR 8 AR 1R SR B I ﬁﬁ 7R 5 A apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated

B2 IR R AE o B BR &SR nl fE B 3% 45 assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors

st AR e that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

7 45 ] AL T AR BE AR R 4 A T DA AR The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
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ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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involving estimations (see below), that the Directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on

the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties located in the PRC are not
held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties, the
Directors have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using the fair value

model are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a

EMEB (TAERSGR]) > HiAE EI result, the Group has recognised the deferred taxes on changes
C L&Y 2 2 N 2 B R g in fair value of investment properties as the Group is subject to
PiIE o Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) and Enterprise Income Tax
(“EIT”) on disposal of its investment properties.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

Classification of Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour Enterprises
Ltd. (“Zhen Wah”) as a joint venture

The operation period of Zhen Wah, joint venture of the
Group, expired on 16 January 2014 and PRC court accepted
the application for compulsory liquidation of Zhen Wah
in July 2016. The Directors assessed the classification and
accounting treatment of Zhen Wah based on the legal advice
received. Based on PRC laws and regulations and the related
interpretations by an external PRC legal counsel engaged by the
Group, after the expiry of the operation period and even under
liquidation process, the legal identity of Zhen Wah still exists
and the net assets of Zhen Wah will be distributed to the joint
venture partners based on their equity contributions shareholding
after the completion of the liquidation. The Directors of the
Company expect that the liquidation process is not expected to
complete within one year. Details are set out in note 17.

Classification of unsold properties as properties held for sale

The Group continues to account for certain units of properties
held for sale in the ordinary course of business under HKAS
2 “Inventories” despite these properties, amounting to
HKS$11,562,000 (2015: HK$14,328,000), have been rented out.
The Directors of the Company have been actively marketing the
unsold properties held for sale and the intention is to sell them
in the ordinary course of business rather than for rental and/or
capital appreciation.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.
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AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Allowance for doubtful debts

The Group recognises allowance for doubtful debts based on an
assessment of the recoverability of loan receivables and trade
and other receivables.

Allowances are applied to loan receivables and trade and other
receivables where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. The identification
of doubtful debts requires the use of judgment and estimates.
Where the actual cash flows relating to loan receivables and
trade and other receivables are different from the previous
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of loan
receivables, trade and other receivables and the doubtful debts
expense. As at 30 June 2016, the carrying amounts of trade
and other receivables and loan receivables are HK$17,589,000
(net of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$3,739,000) (2015:
HK$14,815,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$4,027,000)) and nil (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HKS$1,560,000) (2015: nil (net of allowance for doubtful debts
of HK$1,807,000)) respectively.

Recoverability of interest in a joint venture and amount due
from a joint venture

The Directors of the Company have assessed the recoverability
of interest in a joint venture and amount due from a joint
venture amounting to HK$71,570,000 and HK$235,184,000
respectively as at 30 June 2016 (2015: HK$94,467,000 and
HK$239,924,000). The Directors of the Company have reviewed
the latest financial positions of Zhen Wah and concluded that
the amounts will be fully recoverable.

Provision for LAT and EIT

The provision for LAT and EIT is based upon the management’s
estimate of the deductibility of the costs incurred for the
development and sales of the subject properties. Where the
actual deductibility relating to the costs incurred are different
from the amount estimated, such difference will result in an
over/under provision in the carrying amounts of tax payables
and taxation charge for the year.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank loans as disclosed in note 22, net of cash
and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, retained profits and
other reserves.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the Directors of the
Company review annual budgets taking into account the
provision of funding. Based on the operating budgets, the
Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital and balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Categories of financial instruments

“E AN
2016

W T
HKS$°000

4 b A Financial assets
DIHESY AT 2 B Loans and receivables at
B RE ST HR 3K (L4 B4 amortised cost (including cash
K45 E) and cash equivalents) 501,019 505,906
EodNER Financial liabilities
DA S A T 2 AL Liabilities at amortised cost 186,393 207,156

(&) Axih B B& 45 B H BE K BOoR

AEBzETE M T HAES
BRSO B T B A R
A IR R K~ SRAT A K
Te SRAT 45 8% ~ B 5 B H A I AT R
HBEBATHENK - ZFEM TR
w5 5 AR B B RE AT o

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include amount
due from a joint venture, trade and other receivables,
amount due from a non-controlling shareholder, bank
deposits and bank balances, trade and other payables and
bank loans. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Management monitors and manages the financial risks
relating to the Group through internal risk assessment
which analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of

risks.

These financial risks include market risk (including
interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to
these kinds of risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risks from the prior year.

(i) Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in interest rates and
changes in foreign exchange rate.

Interest rate risk analysis

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to its variable-rate bank loans and
bank deposits and bank balances amounting to
HK$149,593,000 (2015: HK$172,192,000) and
HK$258,887,000 (2015: HK$260,105,000),
respectively. The interest rate risk of bank deposits
and bank balances are considered insignificant
as the bank deposits are substantially short-term
deposits and fluctuation in interest rate of bank
balances is limited. The variable-rate bank loans
with original maturity instalments range from
one year to three years. An increase in interest
rates would increase interest expenses. The Group
currently does not have interest rate hedging
policy, however, management monitors interest
rate exposure on dynamic basis and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(U]

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for non-derivative instruments, excluding bank
deposits and balances, at the end of the reporting
period. For variable-rate bank loans, the analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis points
(2015: 100 basis points) increase or a 25 basis
points (2015: 25 basis points) decrease is used
as it represents management’s assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2015:
100 basis points) higher or 25 basis points (2015:
25 basis points) lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended
30 June 2016 would decrease by HK$1,496,000
(2015: HK$1,722,000) or increase by HK$374,000
(2015: HK$430,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s net exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate bank borrowings.

Currency risk

The Group undertakes certain transactions
denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures
to exchange rate fluctuation arise. The Group
currently does not use any derivative contracts to
hedge against its exposure to currency risk. The
management manages its foreign currency risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rate and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(U]

Market risk (Continued)

) i () Currency risk (Continued)
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currency denominated monetary assets and

monetary liabilities (mainly include bank loans) at
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The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group’s profit or loss in response
to reasonably possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period.

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a
5% (2015: 5%) change in foreign currency rates.
A (negative) positive number below indicates a
(decrease) increase in profit where HK$, US$ and
GBP strengthens against RMB for 5%. For a 5%
(2015: 5%) weakening of HKS, US$ and GBP
against RMB, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the pre-tax profit for the year.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i)  Market risk (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (Continued)

3 3 P o s 1 5 B
Effect on profit or loss
e
2016 2015
BT W T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
(7,541) (8,622)
484 484
1 1

(ii)  Credit risk

As at 30 June 2016, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties and financial
guarantees provided by the Group is arising from:

. the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position;
and

. the amount of contingent liabilities in relation
to financial guarantees issued by the Group as
disclosed in note 26.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the Directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies or
state-owned banks in the PRC.

With respect to the amounts due from a joint
venture and a non-controlling shareholder, having
considered their financial standings, the Directors
of the Company are of the view that the credit risk is
limited.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is in the PRC. Other than
concentration of credit risk on liquid funds and by
geographical location, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk. Trade
receivables consist of a large number of customers,
spreading across diverse counterparties.

The Group has provided guarantees to banks in
connection with the customers’ borrowing of
mortgage loans to finance their purchase of the
properties for an amount up to 70% of the purchase
price of the individual property. If a purchaser
defaults on the payment of its mortgage loan
during the period of guarantee, the bank holding
the mortgage may demand the Group to repay the
outstanding loan and any interest accrued thereon.
Under such circumstances, the Group is able
to resell the repossessed properties. Therefore,
management considers it would recover any
loss incurred arising from the guarantee to the

customers.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iii)

Liquidity risk

The Group had net current liabilities of
HK$14,664,000 at 30 June 2016 which include
bank loans of HK$149,593,000. The Directors of
the Company closely monitor the cash flows of the
Group and, upon maturity, will arrange for renewal
and refinancing of the bank loans, where necessary,
to enable the Group to carry on its operations in
the foreseeable future. As at 30 June 2016, the
Group has available unutilised bank borrowing
facilities of approximately HK$11,000,000 (2015:
HK$11,000,000). In the opinion of the Directors
of the Company, the Group expects to renew the
existing banking facilities on similar terms and
conditions where the existing banking facilities of
the Group mature. In this regard, the Directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s liquidity
risk is significantly reduced.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest period on which the Group can
be required to pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from the
weighted average interest rate by reference to the
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (the “HIBOR™)
of the Group’s variable-rate financial liabilities at
the end of the reporting period.

As at 30 June 2015 and 2016, the Group does not
have term loan with repayment on demand clause.
The maturity dates for bank borrowings and other
non-derivative financial liabilities is prepared based

on the scheduled repayment dates.
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6. ZRTH () 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(Z) 4 s 45 20 H OBE B WSk (7)) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
(iii) 2B () (iii)  Liquidity risk (Continued)
BB A S 7 Liquidity risk tables

3

ZE-NE

MAEEY  BERE =HA —~ RMBBE ARZTH
HE - BR—MA -k EWE O WRAW  WREE
Weighted ~ On demand Total Carrying

average  or less than -3 3 months 12 undiscounted amount
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year years cash flows  at30.6.2016
#HFTLT  #FTLC  #NTC EWTT #WTx #WTx

HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HKS$000

— 2016

SRR Trade and othr payables - 9453 1078 26,269 - 36,800 36,800

Bfr STk~ 1R+ Bank loans - variablerate * 234 m 2580 150269 N AT I VU XX

MHEERAH Financial guarantee contracts _ 8,800 _ - - 8,800 -
18545 368 176538 S 186393
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average or less than 12 undiscounted amount
interest rate 1 month months years
BETFE  BETT BETT BETL BT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 $°000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
“E-TE 2015
B SRR Trade and ofher payables - 7683 1351 25,930 - 34,964 34,964
SRATSE - A AT Bankloans - variable rate * 231 3 2661 893 16840 18037 1119
MBERAH Financial guarantee contracts B 13313 B B B 13313 B
21,329 4012 34,843 168,420 228,604 207,156
* b S S I I S = =T * For the Group’s interest bearing borrowings, weighted
n HE S 5 R B AL E 7 average interest rate represents the weighted average of
1 [ Z2E 47 BN _£2.08% (— HIBOR plus 2.08% (2015: HIBOR plus 2.08%).
T— A FEFE ML
2.08%) °
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For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(©)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iii)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group
could be required to settle under the arrangement
for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is
claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting
period, the Group considers that it is more likely
than not that no amount will be payable under the
arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which
is a function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty which are

guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments are subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ to those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting
period.

Fair values

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined in accordance with generally accepted

pricing models based on discounted cash flow.

The Directors of the Company consider that the carrying

amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities

recognised in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their corresponding fair values.

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of Directors (the “Board”) of

the Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for the

purpose of resource allocation and assessment of performance

focused on the location of the properties for property rental and

property sales.
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Ao A 2 R T PR R ()
BRE-Z—-ANEAA=ZTHILAEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

7. WABABER )

Y E o B P AR IEME
(T B )) B ERE - AEH
MY R EA G EEGHFALR PR L
W S AL S W A B T S A
5 o W) S8 8 O AL AE AR 4R I b
R/ BN

A SR 1 45 B8 A o B S o E U 8 R

(A& ) 2 B B2 > LA B e A9
HLA B W AT W) SE R R K W SR
Z o BUE R

(HY) 23 BUBCA Be 38 B

A B2 A AR AR 2 WA B SE R AR
AT R R AEE BT

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

The property rental segment includes property leasing operation
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group’s
investment properties portfolio, which mainly consists of
offices, shopping mall and carparks, are located in Shanghai and
Beijing, the PRC. The property sales segment includes sales of
the Group’s trading properties in Beijing.

These divisions, property rental and property sales analysed
based on distinct geographical locations, are the basis on which
the Group reports its segment information under HKFRS 8
“Operating Segments”.

(a) Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment for the year:

ES LEL
Property rental Property sales

Ex IR Ex By
Beijing Shanghai Beijing Consolidated
ZR-NE ZZAE ZRnE TR ZR-aE ZT-4E ZBnF CZ-Af
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
BRI BETFr EBTL RETr #ra EFTr #RTrx EFTx
HES000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS(000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
AEHRA SEGMENT REVENUE
KA REVENUE
HoMEE External sales 36,269 36,386 67,601 67,051 - = 103,870 103437
s 3 SEGMENT RESULT 31255 M9 135,647 95,57 (140) (158) 166,762 139,533
FAEEMIA  Unallocated other income 4,865 2216

RABARLE  Unallocated corporate expenses
BERA Finance costs
BBREEZEBRME Share of loss of a joint venture

BB i i Profit before taxation

BESHZ O EOREAEH
9 R A B AT 56 3 IH BT 2 A
[l o 7> B 3E BUHR 25 70 B2 i A
(f $8) - T 37 48 73 e e A7 UK
ZIK MATFBUWA - FEEEX

A BB RS R R
FEARZRETHE - WIS
e Y U L A 2 B ) o 2
ZaPEAEL -
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480 (258
@43  @m
0810 (12020

132,768 122356

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3. Segment result represents the profit (loss) from each
segment without the allocation of central administration
costs, bank interest income, imputed interest income on
amount due from a joint venture, finance costs and share
of result of a joint venture. This is the measure reported
to the Board of Directors for the purposes of resources
allocation and performance assessment.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Ao B P s MR TEL I 5 40

BREZZ-ANEAA=ZTHILAEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

7. WARSBER 4 7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(Q) ¥t kAl (b) Segment assets and liabilities

LES Vi LES I

Property rental Property sales

Lx L 3 i
Beijing Shanghai Beijing Consolidated

SE-RE SB-TF CE-AF CF-LF SR-AE S3-IF SE-AF S3-1F
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
BEFE  ERTT BRED ENTD BEED  ERFT BBFL ERTL
HK$000 HKS$'000  HKS$°000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS$000  HKS'000

i ASSETS
NEEE Segment assets 656350 705822 1278401 1302217 2,100 B9 1956851 2031987
AELEES Interest in a joint venture 71,570 94467
RBEERK Amount due from a joint venture 85184 239924
ROBAEEE  Unallocated corporate assets 24531 263,668
GREEAE Consolidated total assets 258,136 263046
il LIABILITIES
NERR Segment liabilties 6,945 5950 30,758 31279 1253 14,381 50,239 51810
FREEEAE Unallocated corporate liabilities 541,397 566,870
GeRkAE Consolidated total libilites 91636 618680
By BE e N [a] i 0 B R B & TR ) For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
i - and allocating resources between segments:
— BEBAAENZ 58N E — all assets are allocated to operating segments other
R~ BITIER ~ RIT458% than interest in a joint venture, amount due from
BB ED K HAMm S EEE a joint venture, bank deposits, bank balances and
b > BUBE EE TG4 I B KR A cash and other corporate assets; and
L K
—  RIANE 5 R H A AT 2R R — all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
— WA BN T K IE - other than amount due to a related company
FHBLIE ~ $RATE K - MBAERL included in trade and other payables, tax payable,
TH A B A H A ZEEEL bank loans, deferred tax liabilities and other
2 HR B E T 4 Bl 5 B corporate liabilities.
XA o
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For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

7. WARSBER 4 7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(W) b2 B0E R (¢) Other segment information

ET V] LEL 1

Property rental Property sales

i L# 7S MR FAR Ba

Beijing Shanghai Beijing Segment Total Unallocated Consolidated

v SR VS E St S Sl S5 et S SV S L ey SV Sl S E e 2. S S K A S S S L
5 .

2016 2015 216 2 2016 il 2016 ; 216 2016
L Tz T #Tr g #HTr a2
HES 000 $ HKS000 SO0 HES00 $ HES 000 $ HES'000 ¢ HES 000

EFAFEME Anountsincluded in the
ERUAFEE  measure of segment result
S lvas | orsegment assets and

liabiities

BT Capita expenditures - - - - 15 2 15 il ] 165 8 186
it Depreciaion - - - - 119 nl 119 il 6 4 184 161
HEEURSE  Tmpaimentloss reversed)

WEBR (BF)  reoognised n respect of

B8 roeabls, et (1) - - 15 - - (1) 15 - - (1) 15
FENELNTE  Tnorease in fair value of

pa | investment properties 4816 16,301 78,260 40423 - - 83,07 5124 - - 83,076 5124
(7)) b3R5 % (d) Geographical information
AL B HINEF 2RI A All of the Group’s revenue from external customers are
I H B (B BRAM) o located in the PRC (other than Hong Kong).
¥ B 7 A 2 M 3843 i JE TR B The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
FEMRTH(E 0T non-current assets analysed by the geographical area in

which the assets are located:

Ik ¥ By ¢ 7 YR v L
Carrying amount of
non-current assets
S e
2016 2015
BT T T
HKS$°000 HKS$°000
TR (A s BRAM) PRC (other than Hong Kong) 1,927,768 2,001,865
AL bk I B SRS S The Group’s non-current assets above exclude interest in
ARG LR TA - a joint venture and financial instruments.
() HR A 7 45 1B A 4 B — & B L A A (e) The Group does not have major customers as no single
AR T A 10% 1 die A - I Jm customer contributes more than 10% of the Group’s
BEF - revenue.
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8. bk aE K i

HoAth i i % s 18 4
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oAt B W R B
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BEAEHKZ

TRt FLE A
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W Bt AT i A1 2 H0ER (FFA)
EIE-2
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8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Included in other gains or losses are:

Bank interest income

Exchange (loss) gain, net

Imputed interest income on other
receivables

Imputed interest income on amount due

from a joint venture

9. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank borrowings

s
2016

#W T
HKS$°000

3,524
(12,785)

3

13,668

5,838
411

15,563

—
2016

#W T
HKS$°000

4,243

ZEF—Th4E
2015
W o
HK$°000

4,791

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation has been arrived

at after charging (crediting):

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of receivables, net

Auditor’s remuneration

Depreciation

(Gain) loss on disposal/written off of
property, plant and equipment

Operating lease rentals in respect of
office premises

Staff costs (including Directors’
remuneration shown in note 11(a))

Impairment loss reversed in respect
of loan receivables

Net operating lease rentals received
and receivable
Gross rents from

investment properties
Less: Direct expenses from
investment properties
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ZE N
2016

T
HK$°000

SN
2015
BT o
HKS$°000

- 153
1,496 1,491
184 161
(14) 5
2,908 2,507

13,680 12,310
(110) -

(108,550) (109,216)

19,745 20,803

(88,805) (88,413)
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11. HHEREBME

(W) 38 &

EHEE
HATEFR
A K

HoAb T
Fr iz L HAbAR A

AR R AR A T 3 kK
DAy 7y B 8 2 Ak 3K

EMREMT A (ZF—F
A EHRZAAMEW
B

YTES

Bk S A

WAL (7 —)

R 2L

TAN Michael Gonzales /£

FEIBEE

CHUA Joseph Tan G A
(H#=)

R =)

wH R ()

BUFATES

HEaERE

SY Robin Chuafif £
EHEEL

GO Patrick Lim & 4

TAN Kenway Hao 76 (457 7

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

- VA 2 —EF L4

2016 2015

W T
HKS$°000

o
HKS$°000

Directors’ fees

Executive 1,840 1,960
Independent Non-executive 1,560 1,200
Other emoluments

Salaries and other benefits 450 1,852

Contributions to retirement
benefits scheme 107 163
Share-based payments 930 -
4,887 5,175

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the fourteen
(2015: twelve) Directors were as follows:

wEk  BKEN  DERA
e JCEA ahEBs BRZAX
Salaries ~ Contributions
andother  toretirement  Share-based
Fees benefits  benefits scheme payments Total
#HTe  #WTL WL EWTL #FTx
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HE$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Executive Directors
Mr. TAN Harry Chua 280 - 14 - 294
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank (note i) 40 - 12 - 252
M. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao 280 - 14 - 294
Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales 200 - 10 - 210
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 280 - 14 - 294
Mt. CHUA Joseph Tan
(note ii) 120 - 6 - 126
Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan 360 - 18 - 38
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming (note iii) 80 - ) - 82
Mr. WONG Sai Tat (note iv) - 450 17 - 467
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 360 - - - 360
Dr. SY Robin Chua 320 - - - 320
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 360 - - - 360
M. GO Patrick Lim 360 - - 930 1,290
Mr. TAN Kenway Hao (note v) 160 - - - 160
3400 450 107 930 4,887
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11. EHEERRBREME 2

(W) P W4 (A7)

A T B R T PR R ()
BREZZ-ANEAA=ZTHILAEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

WiTESF Executive Directors

R K T 56 A Mr. TAN Harry Chua

BT (M2 —) Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank (note i)
B2 B A Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao

TAN Michael Gonzales /¢ Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales

SUEAE (=)
HIEMESEAE

Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming (note iii)
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth

Fra K BRI
oA 45 A AT E {3k
Salaries  Contributions
and other to retirement
Fees benefits  benefits scheme Total
BEFL BFFL BEFTL BEFTx
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
280 - 14 294
240 - 12 252
280 - 14 294
240 - 12 252
200 360 10 570
240 - 12 252
320 - 16 336
160 1,492 73 1,725
320 - - 320
280 - - 280
320 - - 320
280 - - 280
3,160 1,852 163 5,175

(R P Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan
Witk () Mr. WONG Sai Tat (note iv)
BIEAGES
HEgF ek
SY Robin Chua i+ Dr. SY Robin Chua
EHAE L Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John
GO Patrick Lim /54 Mr. GO Patrick Lim

s

|1

BRI 7N T T 4 AR A R AT BUAR R
A 35 8% 2 3 6 45 HL 468 A2 47 AR
H T PR LR B 6 -

CHUA Joseph Tan G A4E it = &% — /X 4§
WA —HBERER/ANENITES -

REWEER -F—HEF+ A+
—HBMEARANTEDS -

Wit E R —FE AL =
A BHEA N FRRNATES -

TAN Kenway Hao 5 4 it = & — /N 4F
P9 — H O RAT By A A R 8 AL
THS -

b AT I R S

HA Oy m) B 7 S I B BT 4 3k 9 IR
¥ -

B0 S YUAT I R A
15 45 1R 2 A 24 W S BT 4 A A IR 5

Notes:

iii.

vi.

vii.

Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company on 1 April 2016.

Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming retired as Executive Director of the
Company on 11 December 2015.

Mr. WONG Sai Tat resigned as Executive Director of the
Company on 13 July 2015.

Mr. TAN Kenway Hao was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 1 April 2016.

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group.

The Independent Non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as Directors of the Company.
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1. 3R E ) 11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
() B4 (b) Employees’ emoluments
8- o NS R e The five highest paid individuals included no (2015: one)
—hFE: — &) FEH> HM & Director, details of whose emoluments are set out in note
5 O SR RESS 11 () JH A o 11(a) above. The emoluments of the remaining five (2015:
BINAEL (FE—HF  W4&) A four) individuals are as follows:
TZBEmT -
RN —E T4
2016 2015
W F o BT o
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
3 4 T At 48 A Salaries and other benefits 4,354 3,367
B KR A 5T # Retirement benefits scheme
3Kk contributions 205 163
4,559 3,530
5 2 B4 A 7 AN AL The emoluments were within the following bands:
fRE¥H
Number of employees
ZE N —E T4
2016 2015
b i s 11,000,001 7T Less than HK$1,000,001 3 4
% 1,000,001 7 &
5 #2.000,000 7C HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 2 —
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BL

BLIE S (FHA) B4 -

S B BB MR T B R )
BREZZ-ANEAA=ZTHILAEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

12. TAXATION

e ST ZE— R

2016 2015
W or
HKS$’000

T
HK$°000

The tax charge (credit) comprises:

B IR B T A5 A Current tax in the PRC
(F BRI (other than Hong Kong)
7 A Current year 12,909 10,927
WAL AR GEBR) AS 2 YEAf (Over) under provision in prior years (255) 29
12,654 10,956
1R IE B IH (M 7 55246 Deferred taxation (note 24) 23,998 7,935
36,652 18,891

R A% 4 ) 7S T 4 JBE A0 MU IR R B Y
A B 5 G 8 R TH A 3 28 A o B
o e A o

(o A N e o | R T TR
(BB L SEERILE
MEFL G > ALEEPBEEB B E R
FENFE—H—HHEL25% °

AN T AE A WS B0 R 2 BE S L 1Y
HETWEA R ZHEMBLAR > A%
28 FAE P E R B Sl A B
WA B A R A B 10% F.25% ©

0 S L TH B R B S B E 2524 TH
A o

EREBEREE A - FF/)E
— A — H & > 5 Uk B A 2E AT i
B v ] I 28 858 5% 0 TE F0 B o it 2
A o kB A E A R R AR
\WA%%%EWJ%%EﬁEH

% 12,602,000 70 ( . F — A AF ¥
2,815,0007C) °

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no assessable
profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the Group’s PRC entity is 25%
from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Certain subsidiaries of the Company incorporated in Hong
Kong and the British Virgin Islands are subject to withholding
tax ranging from 10% to 25% on their taxable rental income,
management fee income and interest income in the PRC.

Details of the deferred tax liabilities are set out in note 24.

The EIT Law also requires withholding tax upon distribution
of profits earned by the PRC entities since 1 January 2008 at
5%. At the end of the reporting period, deferred taxation of
HK$2,602,000 (2015: HK$2,815,000) has been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of the temporary
differences attributable to such profits.
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12. B ) 12. TAXATION (Continued)

A AR TR B A S AT B AR A AH AR K H
At 2 THT Wi 8 3R 2 R B iR BB BR AN T

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

76

ZE N “ER—TAE
2016 2015
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$000
Wk Bt i i ) Profit before taxation 132,768 122,356
8 F R 25% 2 AT 5 B Income tax expense at the applicable
(ZF—HE  25%) rate of 25% (2015: 25%) 33,192 30,589
B TE R R R e S 2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible
Bl B 7 2 for tax purpose 8,038 3,786
REABIEATRBIA Z Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
Tl 75 5% %8¢ purpose (4,091) (5,589)
o B e R B 5 e 4R 2 BTG R Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 4,025 3,980
g -SE 1 ZiVis ¥d Tax effect of share of loss of a joint
B W2 venture 2,453 3,005
AR GBEE) AR BE4 (Over)under provision in prior years (255) 29
B 1 DA R e R Y AT T 3K Utilisation of deductible temporary
W 1RF 22 38 difference previously not recognised - (2,937)
ARTER B 2 Effect of different tax rate for
NGRSl TGP subsidiaries in respect of
withholding income tax (22,372) (16,723)
Hh B B | E A IR 2 Withholding tax on dividend paid by a
TR BL (M 7E) PRC subsidiary (note) 572 =
Bt I s 7 oK 43 i fis A 2 TEHE AL Deferred tax liabilities resulting from
T 7 A 2 R AL B JE AR withholding tax on undistributed
profits of a subsidiary 5 520
T EBI B EY EZ Effect of LAT on investment properties 14,962 2,110
HAth Others 123 121
PR B H Income tax expense 36,652 18,891
Vi Note:

B 7 B R 58 24 T 79 it 2 2 B A1 31 1 2 S8 B JH B
AL > A4 I 2 ST A 4 LS 3 v I R 2 D ik

] Je S i 2 TELAR L -

year by a PRC subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Ao B P s MR TEL I 5 40

BREZZ-ANEAA=ZTHILAEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

13. DIVIDENDS

“F A
2016

YT
HK$’000

HK$°000

Final dividend paid in respect of year ended
30 June 2015 of 3 Hong Kong cents

(2014: 2.5 Hong Kong cents) per share 6,706 5,485
Interim dividend paid in respect of year
ended 30 June 2016 of 2.5 Hong Kong
cents (2015: 2.5 Hong Kong cents) per
share 5,590 5,485
12,296 10,970

M ARNF R ZFE—INFEILH =T H
Fr A > AN A E R . F — IS AR
+ A= H Rk (s A ) A
NABE “FE—ANENA=Z1+HIE4E
FERI AR WIBEE (W) -

5 JBe 2 A

A BB N AL B AR AR e v
A T5RRAE LT B R R

14.

The final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2016 will be
considered, if thought fit, and recommended (if any) by the
Directors of the Company on 3 October 2016 as announced by
the Company on 20 September 2016.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

RN RN
2016 2015
T BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000
#A Earnings
FIERT B & I FE AR L #% Z FI ) Earnings for the purposes of basic and

BRI (A FIHE A A BE 0 E £

i A1)

diluted earnings per share (profit for
the year attributable to owners of the
Company)

95,085 101,586

JBe A % H Number of shares
ARG A R A 2 Weighted average number of ordinary

9 i 0 HE ST 2 B H shares for the purpose of basic earnings

per share 222,940,826 219,403,681

ol I HE VB A 4 i Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares

vz on share options 10,736,214 14,066,666
AR SR E R Number of ordinary shares for the purpose

W3 e W e of diluted earnings per share 233,677,040 233,470,347
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15, Wo3k ~ B BBl

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

78

e MAa%
3 &3 WE SR aH
Leasehold Office
land and Motor equipment
building vehicles and others Total
W T W T W T HBEWT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
JA COST
MEZF-NELA—H  Atlluly2014 1,786 5,137 3,284 10,807
ik ik Exchange realignment 12 33 6 51
NE Additions - - 186 186
s Disposals/written off = = (18) (18)
AZE—TEAH=1H  At30 June 2015 1,798 5,770 3,458 11,026
RSk Exchange realignment (139) (385) (99) (623)
NE Additions - = 84 84
e B Disposals/written off - (310) 37) (347)
REZZ—ANEAAZTH  At30 June 2016 1,659 5,075 3,406 10,140
% DEPRECIATION
MEZ—MELA—H  Atlluly2014 587 5,308 2,933 8,828
ki Tk Exchange realignment 4 30 4 38
AR Provided for the year 85 _ 7% 161
i AR S Eliminated on disposals/written off - - (13) (13)
AZE—HEARH =1 H At30 June 2015 676 5338 3,000 9,014
iRk Exchange realignment (54) (352) (69) (475)
R A JE A Provided for the year 81 = 103 184
T B Eliminated on disposals/written off - (293) (33) (326)
REZF—-AEAHZTH  At30 June 2016 703 4,693 3,001 8,397
WK i 4 CARRYING AMOUNTS
REZZ—ANEAAZTH  At30 June 2016 956 382 405 1,743
REZ—HHEANH=TH At30June 2015 1,122 432 458 2,012

A AR A B - AR T 2 MR T R AR
i 7 B B 3 o RS B RRE A fiE
Wi i R MR A 2 TR AT AT 5E
i BCBRIEMAESBARMERE -

TE % 8 B AL G R BRE R > LAY
3 AR IR R T SRR

The carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold land and building
comprises property situated in the PRC. As the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is classified as finance lease.

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated at the following rates per annum after taking into
account of their estimated residual values:

iENE B T 2048 Leasehold land and building Over shorter of lease term

(LAWK S 25 7y UE) and 20 years
H W 15% Z.20% Motor vehicles 15% to 20%
PN 2 R4 R HoAh 10% % 33.3% Office equipment and others 10% to 33.3%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

16. B&EWE

for A BB MR TR R R )
BREZZ-ANEAA=ZTHILAEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BT o
HKS$'000

AR
AZE—NELH—H

S

N F-{H 338 10 A 48 25 1 T R

RoE—-REANA=1H
SR B
D8 (A3 A 18 4 1A ke R

REE—ANEANA=ZTH

AR NESNH=ZTH R -E T
FARA=TH REMBEDEZ N
ST {E Y AR 5 B A 42 1) 3l 4 R 2 M ST
B BN AR A (55 — K74
Wi b (H R HEBMARAR) » N %
HEET 2 fiEA S HEAEAGEE
& K A R b [ R AL ) SEEAT A 2
BBy o S ANE T S IR LA (R
AL W 2 A S B DL 8% R B2k H
BIRE & R R R SE g A
et A (0% ) o =45 51 8k A T {3
T A 2 2 i 45 T AR Hs 83,076,000 TG
(= F—HAF W %57,224,00000) B #
AB#N - A REWEMR R E -

A4 [ DL SRR B A B A T A O
EWABEAEE 2 BCEY R ™R
VA EITERE -

FAIR VALUE
At 1 July 2014 1,930,079
Exchange realignment 12,798
Increase in fair value recognised

in profit or loss 57,224
At 30 June 2015 2,000,101
Exchange realignment (156,937)
Increase in fair value recognised

in profit or loss 83,076
At 30 June 2016 1,926,240

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 30
June 2016 and 30 June 2015 has been arrived at on the basis
of valuations carried out by Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited, an independent firm of qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group with appropriate
qualification and recent experience in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived
at by reference to property listings for similar properties in
the same location and conditions or where appropriate by
considering the capitalised income to be derived from the
existing tenancies and the reversionary income potential of the
properties. The revaluation gave rise to a net gain arising from
increase in fair value of HK$83,076,000 (2015: HK$57,224,000)
which has been credited to profit or loss. All the investment
properties are situated in the PRC.

The investment properties of the Group held under operating

leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model for both years.
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Ao B P 5 MR TEL I 5 40

BREZR-ANEANAZTHIEEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

16.

TR -EEENEEER |

v¥WE @)

EU A EARACAGETE > FR FEAG 4%
HEY N BN B A A T # (BR
A7 17 A6 5T/ 5 FE 8 38 4 A ) T (R &
P o < 7 R VA O VI A= A
4o BB EEHSWANEARL
WENMBEE - SETHEN - HHE
A AL 2 E H4.50% £ 525% (% — i
A 450% % 525%) 0 EKon A E KA
Al A JT R o W & AL L
REWHATHEED » RZIRK - ¢
CIRE 7/ S0k ey SRR 0 R A
WHE T4 > #@EHSH ST K
ANR¥8I i E ANR¥I88 L (ZF—H
oK AR L E AR K176
JC) o FEon B oy — R R A R R 5
ATLR - HMnmigE cilesgEsa
TAEBE > R Z IR o

16 H B ROEAGE N > R RS 6 R
bt fF B A0 E E R BlE oo
oo B S8R At DR 3R A R T R
B T 3 R T 8 R L R A AR R
#165,327,000 70 (= & — T 4F : uk g
179,176,000 JG. ) ° {8 I 5 5 35 77 35 B
JGEH R o RO A B A T
ESODLEC N/ G R SN
130,000 7C &= A R %190,0007C ( —F — H
A0 N R 120,000 T £ A K 250,000
JG) B9 R] R BT 4 BT B B B o W
{5 ) T 45 B T 6 6 AR e R SN PE B
o K Z IR o

3 A B PR AT Y Al (8 T ik A A A o
AL FE Y S AT (E I - W) B K
e £ A& 7 LB & -

A 45 [ B W A H 2 BRSO 55

Bz o =8 o RWAEFEE RN =8
A B o

2 ) 4 A PR A

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The key unobservable inputs used in valuing the investment
properties (except for carparks portions in Beijing) under the
income capitalisation approach were the capitalisation rate
used and market unit rent of individual unit. The capitalisation
rate used, taking into account of the capitalisation of rental
income potential, nature of the property, prevailing market
condition, ranging from 4.50% to 5.25% (2015: 4.50% to 5.25%)
represents the significant unobservable input. An increase in the
capitalisation rate used would result in a decrease in fair value
and vice versa. Market unit rent of individual unit used, derived
from the market rentals from comparable properties with a
range of RMB87/sq.m. to RMB188/sq.m. (2015: RMB85/sq.m.
to RMB176/sq.m.) per month represents another significant
unobservable input. An increase in the market unit rent would

result in an increase in fair value and vice versa.

Key unobservable input used in valuing the carparks portions in
Beijing amounting to HK$165,327,000 (2015: HK$179,176,000)
under direct comparison approach was the market unit sales
rate with adjustment on other factors, such as time and location.
Market unit sales of carparks used, derived from the markets
unit sales comparables with a range of RMB130,000 to
RMB190,000 (2015: RMB120,000 to RMB250,000) per unit,
represents the significant unobservable input. An increase in the
market unit sales used would result in an increase in fair value

and vice versa.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used
in prior year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

The valuation of the Group’s investment properties is classified
as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers
into or out of Level 3 during both years.
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17. FHEEXMERHBEEERK

BOE WA > I BT (M RE)

A T B R T PR R ()
BREZZ-ANEAA=ZTHILAEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

17. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT

DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE

ZE AN

HKS$’000

Cost of investment, unlisted (Note) 136,345 147,766

WA B 4% e L B fakt AR 114 40 Share of post-acquisition losses
and reserves (64,775) (53,299)
71,570 94,467
EEtERK Amount due from a joint venture 235,184 239,924
Yiig Note:

TR AR AR T o A% 42 [ B ey P I A
HEHE A5 T ok 02 o I PR AP AR 2 5 o IR PR C AT
Wt > b B B AL G R E R g e %
T \AE Jo =% — TAEAE ) ik -

AEFR VLR o A 4 ) 3 AN R 142,840,000 78
1 25 BUE A - Ak I 3 T RE HE 73 19 80% o AR 48 —
T A PR > YIFE 2 GE B AR S AR
#21,000,0007C - H o AR 4R | K v Oy A E R £ 43
& A R #10,290,000 76 & A B #10,710,000 T >
T A 4 B Je vh 5 5 0 A 43 A R A I 2 2 i
HE 15 49% K 51% o A< 48 18 7F 42 fik 1 fn & A A R ¥
32,550,000 7C IFf B 2% Ji§ 1F 4 A 55 ] 1f) 311 3 1 5 11 B

=,
sK ©

WA > e AR i R R TR SR A A A TR
i A ok 2> B A B I 3 R A L 7 i B R IR A
HY i - 3 B e T A 2 80% A1 o

BoEZNENA=STHILEF > A8 EERF
T I 8 HERE 25 49% DA BE £ 05 5E AR DI #E K
REBZ N NHECHHAABEE > mYIE
ZEREHEAME MR A AR -

WA BT E 2R 1 )R 4y T R 4% RE i v EE O (AR 4R
[ 15 49% I TERE 15 ) o ph R AR 20 m) 3 35 3R 2 3 e 4
RITBRA R T EEBEN—BRE  MEE =
F—NFEANHAZTH - HPgEIIE31% 6 i
110,368,000 7C (& — H4F « #%10,368,0007¢) iif7
KT LIRER o

MNZFE—ANESNA=Z+AR_F—TH
FEANA=ZTHMEEMEFERHNT :

TREEAM

Name of joint venture

RN I 2 o 1 b S A PR A 7 ol

Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour PRC
Enterprises Ltd.

Bfat YR ENR —F - HE-A+ANHE
oo Z 1% > PIFE R 1L H R K BLIE AT
& o

)3 3. Hl [
Place of
establishment

The Group had lodged petitions for international arbitrations in respect of the
dispute with the Chinese joint venture partner as to the percentages of equity
interest held in Zhen Wah in prior years. Two arbitral proceedings were heard
and two arbitral awards were made by China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission in 2008 and 2010.

Before the arbitrations, the Group injected RMB42,840,000 as investment cost
to Zhen Wah, representing 80% of equity interests in Zhen Wah. Pursuant to
the arbitral award in 2008, the registered capital of Zhen Wah was confirmed
to be RMB21,000,000, of which RMB10,290,000 and RMB10,710,000 were
contributed by the Group and the Chinese joint venture partner, respectively, and
that the equity interests of Zhen Wah were held by the Group and the Chinese
joint venture partner as to 49% and 51%, respectively. The additional capital
contribution of RMB32,550,000 by the Group was considered as advances to Zhen
‘Wabh by the Group.

Also, the arbitral award in 2010 supported the distribution of profit arising from
income generated from a piece of land held by Zhen Wah located in Tung Kok
Tau, Shenzhen, the PRC before re-development entitled by the Group should be
80%.

The assets and liabilities of Zhen Wah were deconsolidated and the Group’s share
of net assets and results in Zhen Wah had been accounted for as a joint venture
under the equity method based on the Group’s 49% equity interest in Zhen Wah
since the year ended 30 June 2009.

The distribution of profit arising from income was accounted for under the equity
method based on the Group’s 49% equity interest in Zhen Wah. The additional
share of 31% up to 30 June 2016 which has not been recognised by the Group
amounted to HK$10,368,000 (2015: HK$10,368,000), as the Directors of the
Company consider the result of the arbitration is subject to the agreement of the
Chinese joint venture partner.

Particulars of the joint venture as at 30 June 2016 and 30 June
2015 are as follows:

7 4 1 K5 A7 B A
The Group’s
equity interest

49% KRR (AL
49%  Operation ceased (Note)

THEEH

Principal activity

Note: The operation period of Zhen Wah expired on 16 January 2014. Thereafter,
Zhen Wah ceased its operation and is now in the process of liquidation.
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for A B s MR TR R R )

BRE-Z—-ANEAA=ZTHILAEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

17. EBLEWE SBEERZK 17. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT

(45 DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)
HR U 7w B 5 4 6 R BR PR ME 25 95 AR Summarised financial information prepared in accordance
AL WA A R 0 BA G ORI with HKFRSs in respect of the Group’s joint venture which is
h accounted for using the equity method is set out below:
RN B S g2
2016 2015
B W T T T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
I m) Non-current assets 228,831 252,352
WA E Current assets 45,583 53,246
Ui B A 13 Current liabilities (11,436) (14,461)
FEE B fE Non-current liabilities (235,184) (239,924)
27,794 51,213
FuEERARSBEERFENT The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the
followings:
RN S —hAF
2016 2015
BT T T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
e KB &%E Cash and cash equivalents 37,449 44,433
P Rt = O N 3 Non-current financial liabilities
" EJ B At B A B (excluding trade and other payables
bl
KEA) and provision) (235,184) (239,924)

SRRE CF A
AH=1TH ANH=1H
kAR JE 1k 4
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2016 30 June 2015
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
WA Revenue - _
AAE T 1E Loss for the year (20,025) (24,530)
A4 H A 2 (24 Wss Other comprehensive (expense) income
for the year 3,394) 205
A A A T S M AR Total comprehensive expense
for the year (23,419) (24,325)
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17. SEEREE ABRAERERK 17
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FaltFEERaFEmT

I8 & 4
FLE A
F B

A B At S B R BT A AR 5
AR T A il 0 1) A SR A 10 AR THT(EL

BEMEFEE
AR A A A SEHE AR Y
[ERi e

BAE R R A — BaH AL
e A

AL [ A SEHE 2 Y
% T

A T B R T PR R ()
BREZZ-ANEAA=ZTHILAEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT
DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

The above loss for the year include the followings:

“E—A CE A

~H=Z1+H ANH=TH

k42 1E 4 B

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2016 30 June 2015

BT BT T

HKS$’000 HK$°000

Depreciation and amortisation 4,264 4,490
Interest income 697 1,284
Interest expense 13,668 15,563

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interest in a joint venture recognised
in the consolidated financial statements:

“E N e Sl S
2016 2015
BT W T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
Net assets of joint venture 27,794 51,213
Proportion of the Group’s ownership
interest in a joint venture 49% 49%
13,619 25,094
Deemed capital contribution —
imputed interest income 57,951 69,373
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest
in a joint venture 71,570 94,467
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Ao B P 5 MR TEL I 5 40

BREZR-ANEANAZTHIEEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

17.

GR-EE3 EVE LT &

(3

PP G ERLERZE WHAL
AR - AEEARGEREN
1T 150% 4% 52 HE - 450 52 M 4% A 42 B AR
FAGINE (Y & R E o YR
REHER _F—-NE—A+NHE
o DI &8 87 O R E A IE A K
B SR AR N 4R B 5 3 I
ZHEE e HEIEBRER - F - NELA
L 1 0 8 ol v I EE 2 -

HRPE B A AR AL > DL oA S
i 22 A1 e Bk TR R AR Ak B A R
Fe o E AL AR K B AR R
e YIRS NEBARFE > H
FEEMENERTRREZERGEE
TR R BT R AT AR
FAESENEAREEE AR —
FNTER

G A 2 RO B AR R ZE N H R R
WK T T M0 A %A R - 3% KK
PLEAE6% (2 —TL4F : 6%) B
e 3 8 B BB o

RAFAHERC MR T —INENH
“tHAEEBMCEMR REBEMSERK
X85 o A Ry HE 71,570,000 o M #E BE
235,184,000 7T {1 o] Wic [ i g o AR 45 31| 2
B AT BA 0 A 5 R TE R TR A AL B TR 1Y
AT ARNFEFHEHSHESG
i QE
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17. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT

DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Zhen Wah is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company and
indirectly held by the Company. The Group is able to exercise
50% voting power in the joint venture, which is determined
by the proportion of the Group’s representatives in the Board
of Directors of Zhen Wah. The operation period of Zhen Wah
expired on 16 January 2014. Both joint venture partners of
Zhen Wah have determined not to extend its operation period
and an application was lodged to compulsorily liquidate Zhen
Wah during the year. PRC court accepted the application for
compulsory liquidation of Zhen Wah in July 2016.

Based on the PRC laws and regulations and the related
interpretations by an external PRC legal counsel engaged by the
Group, after the expiry of the operation period and even under
liquidation process, the legal identity of Zhen Wabh still exists
and the net assets of Zhen Wah will be distributed to the joint
venture partners based on their equity contributions after the
completion of the liquidation. The Directors of the Company
expect that the liquidation process is not expected to complete
within one year.

The amount due from a joint venture is unsecured and to be
repayable after the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. The amount is carried at amortised cost at an

effective interest rate of 6% (2015: 6%) per annum.

The Directors of the Company have assessed the recoverability
of interest in a joint venture and amount due from a joint
venture amounting to HK$71,570,000 and HK$235,184,000,
respectively as at 30 June 2016. Based on the latest financial
information and fair value of prepaid lease payments of Zhen
Wabh, the Directors of the Company have concluded that the

amounts will be recoverable.
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BREZZ-ANEAA=ZTHILAEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

18. R EiPk 18. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
REHEEYETIM R PR AE The properties held for sale of the Group are situated in the
WK ETHEWER TEHEE PRC. At the end of the reporting period, certain units of
W 11,562,000 7C (& — H4E W properties held for sale amounting to HK$11,562,000 (2015:
14,328,0007C) Bl - AN G HEHF —H HK$14,328,000), have been rented out. The Directors of the
FEMIES TR A R ENEEYE Company have been actively marketing the unsold properties
HWATEH®EBETTITHEZEY held for sale and the intention is to sell them in the ordinary
XS WHEB/THEM SEARE - course of business rather than for rental and/or capital

appreciation.

19. 85K M8 Wik K 19. LOAN RECEIVABLES

RN —E—HAE
2016 2015
BT 7B or
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
B O A B K Loan receivables 1,560 1,807
W R R Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (1,560) (1,807)
B E U IR SRy M R E o AR The loan receivables were unsecured and interest-free. The
WMHIR > ZESHEC 2T - amounts were all past due at the end of the reporting period.
SR S W) Movement in allowance for doubtful debts
RN —E—HAE
2016 2015
T W or
HKS$’000 HK$°000
R AET) At the beginning of the year 1,807 1,796
bk E ik Exchange realignment 137) 11
T s 18 43 [ Impairment loss reversed (110) -
AR # At the end of the year 1,560 1,807
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20. Hofb 4 k& A

20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

B B B 3 b HE MR 3K Trade and other receivables

—E—A —E—hAE

2016 2015

W T T T T

HKS$’000 HK$’000

& 5y JFE U B A Trade receivables 11,794 11,435

A B U MR B > A7 3K K Other receivables, deposits and

T AT prepayments 9,534 7,407
21,328 18,842
W R R A Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (3,739 (4,027)
17,589 14,815

W oE-NENA=ZTH > HAbE
W K A B 3 B R R B AT 1) SR AT A
SR T FR A AR [ 4 K (DL B RR AR A
F6.15%( - F — N AFE ¢ 6.15%) B &Y
AR ) 2 1 Wi R v W 46,000 00 (&
— h A #H77,0000T) o BRAE R K
h s REMEMYEHEATERZ T
FEEMA30H (. F—HFE 30H) -
REAMEZHEBERIERXLEF 2 )
T WA Wi B A s 3 SRR B AT o

R AR o DLEE O HE A SR E iy 2
G & 5y IE i iR Sk 111,794,000 7T (-
T — A # T 11,435,000 ) (06 R
Hf e fh s 53,443,000 00 ( & — hL4E ¢
W 153,731,00000) ) Z BRES A BT A0 T

At 30 June 2016, the balance of other receivables include
receivables from home buyers who defaulted on repayment
to banks, representing the loans taken over by the Group,
of HK$46,000 (2015: HK$77,000) which are measured at
amortised cost at an effective interest rate of 6.15% (2015:
6.15%) per annum. For property sales, the Group allows an
average credit period of 30 days (2015: 30 days) to the buyers.
Rentals receivable from tenants and service income receivables
from customers are payable on presentation of invoices.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables of
HK$11,794,000 (2015: HK$11,435,000) net of allowance
for doubtful debts of HK$3,443,000 (2015: HK$3,731,000)
presented based on invoice date at the end of the reporting
period:

RN

2016

BT

HKS$’°000
0HZ60H A 0-60 days 8,074 7,288
61 H £90H N 61-90 days - 396
90 H DA | More than 90 days 277 20
8,351 7,704
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T Aib 5 7 RE R (4t
B{ S e A Mo B 3k (47

LR B TR B A % P A A S AT
FEAG > N FEAL A TEE & P S AR R
EERFEEH EFTRAZES
BN E B R o B 5 IR R 2
T1% (. —FAF © 85%) Nf IE 4 41 =k ik
> HA RIFERE ARk -

A 42 B 5 I U IR KB T AR A (E i
#2464,000 JC ( — & — H 4 i ¥
1,173,000 JG ) 2 f& % & > 3% 3K H i i,
e H B s AR A R R R EE
iR - B E R E RE KA E R
S WU PG R A R A A Ty n] i ] e
A 4R BN R R A By ik S A R 2 AT T i
P o 5% S B i B RT3 408 1 AR S
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BREZZ-ANEAA=ZTHILAEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group carries out
assessment on the creditability of the new customer and assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
regularly. 71% (2015: 85%) of the trade receivables are neither
past due nor impaired and have good settlement repayment
history.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances are debtors
with a carrying amount of HK$2,464,000 (2015: HK$1,173,000)
which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. There has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the management
considers that the amounts are still recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances. The average overdue
age of these receivables is 50 days (2015: 52 days) overdue.

B 28 3 1 A Hi 0 i 2 HE 15 40 B Aging of past due but not impaired trade receivables
RN —E T4
2016 2015
T BT o
HKS$’000 HKS$’000

s Overdue:

OHZ30H A 0-30 days 1,380 757
31H Z60H K 31-60 days 807 —
61 H 290 H § 61-90 days - 396
90 H LA & More than 90 days 277 20
2,464 1,173
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20. ﬁﬁl’,%ﬂﬁ% (45) 20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

88

B B 3G fib M MR K ()

I 13 1 S )

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

- 2V 2 —E T

2016 2015

BT T HHT T

HKS$’000 HKS$°000

R AEH) At the beginning of the year 4,027 3,947

S84 T Exchange realignment (288) 24

Tk (A s 48 e R Impairment loss recognised - 153
A 5 A [ K T i Amounts written-off as uncollectible - 97)

A AE At the end of the year 3,739 4,027

1 15 52 B 5 (B & W (R BE D > A
LY SR R RS E N
AH EAR S BB SR AR5
B o I AR Sy M T TE R IR BB LA AN
TEROME BEHEM

IR OIS B LR EEENE S
JRE Wi R R A Ak & A L U 793,739,000 UG
(ZF—HAF ¥ %4,027,0000T) © %M
WK A B TR BB IR G HL R KR R
B oo ALE NG R FRA M R% S AR 2 AT
far4f 4% -

H: P JBEJEE K oK

% ok JEL R S R A - G R B JH i R Wy
.

i

AT B 7 K

JFUE 301 i = 8 A R SRAT E AT AR
095%%2.00%( = & — 14 : 077% %
3.50%) Z T ¥ 4 BRGFHGE ©

AT 4708 R B2

WATH G AR S EEAEREA 2B
o R e T S [ D
B AR BR & 2 $RAT A7 3K o SRAT &5 B 1%
0.01%%F030%( — & — F F : 001%=E
0.35%) Z i 85 4F B G5 o
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In determining the recoverability of a trade debtor, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the trade debtor
from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting
date. The Directors believe that there is no further credit
provision required in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts.

The allowance for doubtful debts of HK$3,739,000 (2015:
HK$4,027,000) are individually impaired trade receivables
which are in severe financial difficulties with long outstanding
balances overdue. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

Amount due from a non-controlling shareholder

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Fixed bank deposits

Fixed bank deposits with original maturity more than three
months carry interest at market rates ranging from 0.95% to
2.00% (2015: 0.77% to 3.50%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
deposits with banks which were not restricted in use with the
original maturity of three months or less. Bank balances carry
interest at market rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.30% (2015:
0.01% to 0.35%) per annum.
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21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

At 30 June 2016, the balance of trade and other payables

il JE £5F Hi 2K &5 B A2 55 s 51,951,000 U6
TR — R 1,648,000 0C) 2 B

GEAT IR o REWMMIAR > LA
HA Ay 3L E T B30 ' ) E A R K 2 R
i N

0H ZE60H A
60 H LAk

0-60 days
Over 60 days

At M AT B 3K E 2 AL R & 47 £ K
%W&mmwmgi STNCES: %%
29,578,000 70 ) K T8 Wi 3k JE i 53,454,000
G (=& — H A i ¥4,065,00000) °

included trade payables of HK$1,951,000 (2015:
HKS$1,648,000). The following is an aged analysis of trade
payables based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period:

RN SE T
2016 2015
0T T
HKS$’000 HK3°000
845 609

1,106 1,039

1,951 1,648

The other payables mainly include rental deposits of
HK$29,307,000 (2015: HK$29,578,000) and receipt in advance
of HK$3,454,000 (2015: HK$4,065,000).

AT 8K 22. BANK LOANS
e SV — 4
2016 2015
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
A LA SRAT B 3K Secured bank loans 149,593 172,192
JRRE A 25 R v (. Carrying amount repayable:
— 4R Within one year 149,593 7,600
— AR AH AN A AR More than one year but not exceeding
two years — 164,592
149,593 172,192
W B T E) A R R Less: Amounts due within one year
— 4F A 2 3O shown under current liabilities (149,593) (7,600)
S 4R FE it B & £ k0 Amounts shown under non-current
liabilities - 164,592
SRAT B LA A i AR % % % The bank loans are secured by the investment properties situated
&= jF ﬁE AT A o SR 4T in Shanghai, the PRC and certain bank deposits. The bank loans
WAL o are denominated in HKS.

W2 B R A 4R B £2.08% (=
E—HAE 12.08%) Z {FEAFEFI KGR -

The loans carried interest at variable rate of 2.08% (2015: 2.08%)
over HIBOR per annum.
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23. A

B v 5 1.00 0 2 34 48 1% A% 4y

HE -
L
—E-REAASTHR

23. SHARE CAPITAL

By H
Number of
shares

Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each

Authorised:

At 1 July 2014,
30 June 2015 and

Hm

Amount
B WT
HKS$°000

ZR-ANEANZTH 30 June 2016 300,000,000 300,000
2 EEAT AR - Issued and fully paid:
W_FE—HELH—H K At 1 July 2014 and
—EF—hENA=1H 30 June 2015 219,403,681 219,404
1T 1 5B M 2 RO 88 4T Issue of shares upon exercise
(B3 ) of share options (Note) 5,015,000 5,015
ZE—-NEANAZ1H At 30 June 2016 224,418,681 224,419
H: BEZ—ARNESNA=ZTHILEER & Note: During the year ended 30 June 2016, the Company issued 5,015,000

NTFR BRI RTE R T2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each upon exercise of share options. The exercise
W3 525,015,000 B o 53 B HE 1) 47 {48 4 A
AFJE N B IR T 113 9T o B A IR BRLE
T AT I 93 0 45 O T 55 A [ SE AR -

price of the share options during the year was HK$1.13 per share. The new
ordinary shares rank pari passu with the then existing shares in all respects.

24. B BLUH £ 24. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

PATT o A 4F S8 B o A ik o 30 ] A 4 1
iR 2 5 2R A Bl T B S A B AR

The major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group
and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting
periods are as follows:

W B R
A 23 A ik A /A E7BS ok

Undistributed

earnings of Investment
PRC entities properties Total
BWTE BT BT
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
WoE—MEELH—H  AtlJuly 2014 2,280 270,032 272,312
Bk E ik Exchange realignment 15 1,789 1,804
TE 48 1 I8 411 BR Charge to profit or loss 520 7,415 7,935
A ZFE—AFESNH=Z1TH At30June 2015 2,815 279,236 282,051
5, 4 o Exchange realignment (218) (22,258) (22,476)

TE 18 5 N F0BR Charge to profit or loss 5 23,993 23,998
R_Z—NEANH=Z1TH At30June2016 2,602 280,971 283,573
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B St B £ (ap)
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24.

25.

o P s MR TE R )
BRER-ANEANAZTH IR
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

At 30 June 2016, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$137,941,000 (2015: HK$121,842,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Such tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At 30 June 2016, the Group has deductible temporary difference
in relation to investment properties of HK$44,634,000
(equivalent to RMB38,147,000) (2015: HK$48,373,000)
(equivalent to RMB38,147,000). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary difference
as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against

which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-
BASED PAYMENTS

The Company previously adopted a share option scheme on 21
December 2001 (the “2001 Scheme”). On 9 December 2011,
an ordinary resolution was passed by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company approving the adoption
of a new share option scheme (the “2011 Scheme”) which will
expire on 8§ December 2021 and the simultaneous termination of
the 2001 Scheme with effect from 9 December 2011. Both the
2001 Scheme and 2011 Scheme were adopted for the purpose
of providing incentives to Directors, employees and eligible
participants.

Under both the 2001 Scheme and 2011 Scheme, the Board
of Directors of the Company may grant share options (the
“Options”) to Directors, employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries and such eligible participants at the discretion of
the Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to the terms
thereof, to subscribe for shares of the Company (the “Shares”),
at a price per Share not less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the date of grant of the relevant Option,
which must be a trading day; (ii) the average of the closing price
of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant of the relevant Option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share.

DYNAMIC HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016

91



92

25. ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁ&u&ﬁ& 2

X (4

m%%&%ﬁ%T&%Tﬂ T R B

) 58 B R A BOE Fe 22 B AR\
m@ﬁ% PIEHERT B H 2 B 81T )%
310% = R #2011 4F 51 # > 5% 10%4H
S5 821,910,368 B 43 T Ak A 2N ) i A 4
HH W B AT AR A110% o A R AT fl
GEYEHE B TS EHRBHEELE
G e 5 = RN BT I8 R i NN
R T H BB B AT A% > At BR
Wt 35 A AT AT (AR T R A o R AT
ﬁ%m&ﬁ@ﬁﬁ$“1%$@tﬁ
W EAGEE AR T2 HEST
Ao R AZ K MR E R T A A RUE
W10 o R R R RE A AR H T
+AH REM o

BT = NENH=TH > #2001
A E #2011 4F FE B R KR
A7 18 19 58 % HE AH BH R 10 BB 2 Al A
IW%MMx#i AFENH=T+H:
21,600,000 A ) 5% 1,000,000 f ( — F — %
FEXNAZ=ZTH ) > AERARNFR
ft #E2001 4F 5t #2011 4E5H# % H 2
E%ﬁh$W%—% AENH=+
H : %6&%% E—HFENH=
+H )

MRE2011 4F 51 H > — &6 43 58 B% 1 7 4%
i:%*ﬁﬁﬁﬂg+amifm&
F oo %R BERE 2 N T (E DL E AR K E
Boo BT AR ¢

T B Ay Wi
&M A7

2 B HE 4 )

TELHA P

RS E
3 2 g ] R

SER-EESF-NEEER | ZOEEARA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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BRE-Z—-ANEAA=ZTHILAEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-

BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the share option
schemes shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company at the date of the adoption of the
relevant share option scheme. Under the 2011 Scheme, such
10% represents 21,910,368 Shares, which continue to represent
about 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this annual report. No Director, employee or eligible
participant may exercise option(s) granted to him or her under
the share option scheme if such exercise would result in him or
her subscribing for more than 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of such new grant in any 12-month
period. The option period for which the options granted are
exercisable, shall be such period as notified by the Board of
Directors of the Company, save that it shall not be more than ten
years from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of HKS$1
is payable by the grantee on acceptance of each grant. The offer
of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from
the date of the offer.

As at 30 June 2016, the number of Shares in respect of which
Options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
2001 Scheme and the 2011 Scheme were 15,085,000 (30 June
2015: 21,600,000) Shares and 1,000,000 (30 June 2015: nil)
Shares respectively, representing 6.9% (30 June 2015: 9.9%)
and 0.5% (30 June 2015: nil) of the Shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of approval of the 2001 Scheme and 2011
Scheme.

One tranche of Options under the 2011 Scheme was granted
during the year ended 30 June 2016. Fair value of these Options
was calculated using the binominal model. The inputs into the
model were as follows:

X i 1 w8 A

Share options

granted on

10 November

2015

Closing Share price on the date of grant HK$3.05
#H3.057C

Exercise price per Share HK$3.05
i H3.057C

Life Option 3.96 years
3.964F

Expected volatility 43.19%
Expected dividend yield 1.75%
Risk-free interest rate 1.018%
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25, FAERESE BB BB 25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND SHARE-

3k (41 BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
BE_ZF—ANESNA=T+THILEFEE The fair value of the Options granted during the year ended 30
N iz T R A 2 A CF(E 5 June 2016 based on the date of grant was HK$930,000.
930,000 7T °
T R R G R The following tables disclose details of the Options:
BREZZ-ANFEAH T HILSEE For the year ended 30 June 2016
BB A
Number of Options
J# j#
“R-1k RN
LA=0 REEA O REER REER AAZTH
ginm BRATHR WA WAS gl fif kM WAITH
Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
price at during during during at
Date of grant per Share  Exercisable period 1 July 2015 the year the year the year 30 June 2016
#H
HKS
2001465t 8
2001 Scheme
“E-—ETAZTANA 13 ZF——#+AZ+EH
ECF-AETAZANEA
25 October 2011 1.13 25 October 2011 to 24 October 2019 21,600,000 - (50150000 (1,500,000 15,085,000
TG e 7T 7
Exercisable at the end of the year 15,085,000
IR S ()
Weighted average exercise price (HKS) L13 - L13 - 113
0114HH
2011 Scheme
~F-RET-ATH 305 ZF-RFT-ATH
ECE-AETAZTNEA
10 November 2015 3.05 10 November 2015 to 24 October 2019 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
JAAF R 7T 17
Exercisable at the end of the year 1,000,000
TS ()
Weighted average exercise price (HKS) - 3.05 - - 3.05
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BEZF—HFEAH T H L

BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2015

YA
Number of Options
i #
~E—E “E-TE
tA-0  REER  REER REER ARSTH
R B BRATHEE THEH AT i frfd KM WAL
Exercise QOutstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
price at during during during at
Date of grant per Share  Exercisable period 1 July 2014 the year the year the year 30 June 2015
#H
HKS
2001465t 8
2001 Scheme
“F-—f+AZTERA 13 ZF——#+AZTEH
EFAEHA= A
25 October 2011 1.13 25 October 2011 to 24 October 2019 21,600,000 - - - 21,600,000
TG e 7T 7
Exercisable at the end of the year 21,600,000
IR ST (8 ()

Weighted average exercise price (HKS)

PR ZFE—NEANHZTHIEFEE
N> AT {8 R HE 2B 3K ¥ 475,015,000 ik
By o A B A8 AE 2B RR R REAT 1 H
2P IR S 4 Wi T A A T S U 2.52
It e

AR =—F——4F+AZ+HBA®RERS
B R B RE DA TR AR o E A R R b
A H 2 AP A #0375 0C ©

[ % 2% & Ab > #2001 4 w53 K2 2011 4
FEE A BEAN H R o A 5 T At 3R A%
HE o

BE _F—ANEXNA=ZTHILEE
N T KRB 5 N R 2 Rk
HE N - {8 £ ¥ 930,000 78 o FH S — 7
MERE TR R RE M) E R AT M
563,000 LA B —E—RNHFEANH =+
H Ik 47 B R g 2 00 B U A o
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L13 = = = 113

Share options exercised during the year ended 30 June 2016
resulted in 5,015,000 Shares being issued. The related weighted
average closing price of the share immediately before the dates
on which the options were exercised was HK$2.52 per share.

For the Options granted on 25 October 2011, the fair value
of each Option determined as at the date of grant using the
binomial option pricing model was HK$0.375.

Save as disclosed above, no other option was granted under
2001 Scheme and 2011 Scheme since their adoption.

The fair value of the Options granted and recognised in profit or
loss during the year ended 30 June 2016 are HK$930,000. Due
to retirement of a Director with Options granted, HK$563,000
was transferred to retained earnings during the year ended 30
June 2016.
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26.

27.

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

A T B R T PR R ()
BREZZ-ANEAA=ZTHILAEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has given guarantees in respect of the settlement
of home loans provided by banks to the home buyers of a
property project in Beijing, the PRC. At 30 June 2016, the
Group had given guarantees in respect of such home loans
of HK$8,800,000 (2015: HK$13,313,000). The Directors of
the Company consider that the fair values of these financial
guarantee contracts at their initial recognition and at the end of
the reporting period are insignificant on the basis of the low loan
to value ratio.

LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee:
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of rented premises for offices as follows:

RN A
2016 2015
T o BT o
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
2,774 2,489

1,192 3,710
3,966 6,199

Leases are negotiated for an average term of three years (2015:
three years) and rentals are fixed over the term of the leases.
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27. BLERYE 4
A ALY

BSR4 i FT R I HE T AR 8 4L
)R R E 2 A B AL IR A T
Rl k=R bdi = I
EFE-ANEANA=ZTHILEEER
JiT B B 2 Bk SR A 4 Wi A 2 s 7,348,000
TG (FE— AR 8,435,0000T) ©
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27. LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)
The Group as lessor:

Contingent rental income was calculated based on the excess of
certain percentage of revenue of the relevant operation of the
lessees who occupied certain of the properties over the fixed
portion of the monthly rentals. Contingent rental income earned
during the year ended 30 June 2016 is HK$7,348,000 (2015:
HK$8,435,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were

rented out under operating leases:

- SV S e S

2016 2015

BT BT T

HKS$’000 HK$°000

"EyE Investment properties 1,793,141 1,817,551
(EREVE S Properties held for sale 11,562 14,328

A EEFYHEN A =4 mRME
FHA MM - MERH A N R W4 o

B R IR A 4R B SRR AR T AN T
18 1 A AR T T SR WA e K AL B K

These assets were leased out for average term of three years
with renewal options given to the lessees for further periods not
exceeding two years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments

TEAAZEINT - under non-cancellable operating leases:
TR N A
2016 2015
W F o Vo o R
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
A —4E A Within one year 86,333 87,795
S Y D AN In the second to fifth year inclusive 84,788 92,034
HAEDL Over five years 2,893 3,770
174,014 183,599
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28. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(@

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group operated a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme (“Defined
Contribution Scheme”) for its qualifying Directors and
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the Defined
Contribution Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Where there are Directors and employees who
leave the Defined Contribution Scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the amount of the forfeited
contributions will be used to reduce future contributions

payable by the Group.

Effective from 1 December 2000, the Group has set up
a MPF Scheme. Members of the Defined Contribution
Scheme were given one-time option to choose to transfer
to the MPF Scheme or remain in the existing scheme. The
MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. Under the
rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
rates specified in the rules. No forfeited contributions are
available to reduce the contribution payable in the future

years by the employer.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the Defined Contribution Scheme and the MPF Scheme
recognised in profit or loss represent contributions
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the schemes.

There are no forfeited contributions in both years
which arose upon employees leaving the Defined
Contribution Scheme and which are available to reduce
the contributions payable by the Group under Defined
Contribution Scheme in the future years.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued)

(b) According to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC subsidiary and joint venture are required to
contribute 20% and 9% of the stipulated salary set by the
Beijing and Shenzhen local governments, respectively,
to the retirement benefits schemes to fund the retirement
benefits of their employees.

During the year, the retirement benefits contributions
recognised in profit or loss are HK$557,000 (2015:
HK$625,000).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

In addition to the guarantees given by the Group for home loans
provided by banks to certain buyers as disclosed in note 26,
the Group has also pledged its bank deposits of HK$3,696,000
(2015: HK$5,210,000) to banks to secure such home loans
granted to the home buyers. The deposits carry floating interest
rate of 0.33% (2015: 0.35%) per annum on average and will
be released upon the earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate
ownership certificate and the relevant property pledged to the
bank; and (ii) the full repayment of mortgaged loan by the home
buyers.

At 30 June 2016, the Group had pledged its investment
properties situated in Shanghai, the PRC, with a carrying
amount of HK$835,410,000 (2015: HK$850,864,000), certain
bank balances and bank deposits of HK$10,553,000 (2015:
HK$2,278,000), an assignment of rental and sale proceeds from
the investment properties and a charge over share in respect
of the Group’s 100% equity interest in Move On International
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
to the bank to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group. The pledged bank balances and deposits carry interest
rate of 1.07% (2015: 1.57%) per annum.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SLAT bl Bk 2 38 B

B TS A B 5 R T EE A 988 20 P 96 5
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EEM TS
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BREZZ-ANEAA=ZTHILAEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, during the year, the Group has entered into

the following transactions with related companies:

RN —E—TAE

2016 2015

W T 7T or

HKS$’000 HKS$°000

S PN Rental income received - 283
2 i E At e A Other income received 441 403
B A A 4 Rental paid 2,670 2,385
4 1 2 Management fee paid 346 423
EL A5 B e Rl % 4 Consultancy service fees paid 1,000 1,000
B A A 2 Agency fees paid 722 758

RoF—=RNEAA=Z+THEE-F -1
FEANA=1TH > FHIARBA R ZH
b oA HE AR A B (% 55 ACE 2 AT -
BB IRAR SR R R ) s

Other outstanding balances with the following related
companies, which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand, at 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015 are as follows:

SR N
2016

S
2015
T
HKS$°000

W T
HKS$°000

AN G B H A B SRR R
B WS A T M W 4

N R T B F A R WA K 2
A7 B g 2 ) K

WANE 5 B A AT R 2
KA B W 2 7 EOR

EEY IS N

A BB T TG AR A R AT

AT e

AREEEERAERFAHEF >
255 R 110 OO ) 8 B

Deposits paid to related companies
included in trade and other receivables 522

Amounts due from related companies

included in trade and other receivables 1,305
Amount due to a related company

included in trade and other payables 1,286
Amount due from a non-controlling

shareholder 895

531

1,920

814

970

Directors of the Company.

The related companies are companies controlled by certain

The Group’s key management personnel are all Directors,
details of their remuneration are disclosed in note 11(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued)

Ao A 2 R T PR R ()
BRE-Z—-ANEAA=ZTHILAEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

31, A2 vl R Bl Ak

AN B A B R AR B IR LR A

I i By &
TR At Ja 2~ ) HE 2
ER S & e
[ FNEIR

B EE
JFC At B o R I % LA K
SRAT A AR M Bl

By £ AR
At 1B AT AR K

W (R &EFH
AR E WO B B R
B T ek

Jie A=

Ml (WAt )
HHE

I i B £ A7
ORI g 2% ] IR

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

reporting period:

Non-current Assets

Interests in subsidiaries
Property, plant and equipment
Loans to subsidiaries

Current Assets

Other receivables and prepayments
Bank balances and cash

Current Liability

Other payables

Net Current (Liability) Assets
Total Assets less Current Liability

Capital and Reserves

Share capital
Reserves (Note)

Total Equity

Non-current Liability

Amounts due to subsidiaries

SER-EESF-NEEER | ZOEEARA A

s
2016

#W T
HKS$°000

Statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the

—E—F4
2015
7T or
HKS$’000

380,495 412,545
8 27
703,423 684,664
1,083,926 1,097,236
178 209
3,138 12,334
3,316 12,543
4,168 4,110
(852) 8,433
1,083,074 1,105,669
224,419 219,404
647,925 673,231
872,344 892,635
210,730 213,034
1,083,074 1,105,669




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Ao B P s MR TEL I 5 40

BREZZ-ANEAA=ZTHILAEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

31. ARAAMBRIE ) 31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)
Mzt - Gt

Note: Reserves

B B3 B

Share
premium
T T
HK$°000

WE 55 falt i
Capital
redemption
reserve
0T T
HK$°000

A Yt el
ik

Translation
reserve
& W T
HKS$°000

option

reserve

BT T

HKS$°000

B 4 %k A

Retained

profits
T T
HK3$°000

A5t

Total
T T
HK$’000

A F— AR At 1 July 2014

tH—H 426,759 1,644 206,664 8,100 19,263 662,430
A B %5 ) Profit for the year - - - - 16,055 16,055
i 58, 7 A= 2. Exchange differences arising

Wi 25 on translation - - 5,716 - - 5,716
A BE A T Total comprehensive income

i A B for the year - - 5,716 - 16,055 21,771
Bl 4 i S Cash dividends

(Mt it %513 78) (note 13) = = = = (10,970) (10,970)
RoF—HAE At 30 June 2015

NH=1TH 426,759 1,644 212,380 8,100 24,348 673,231
A JE i A Profit for the year - - - - 55,443 55,443
i 5, 7 A= 2 Exchange differences arising

a2 on translation - - (70,035) = = (70,035)
SRR () Total comprehensive (expense)

e A AR income for the year - - (70,035) = 55,443 (14,592)
DAHE 25 45 5 I 4 By Recognition of equity-settled

TR I 2 WERR share-based payments = = = 930 = 930
TR I HE 2 Issue of shares upon exercise

Ay 85 47 of share options 2,533 — — (1,881) — 652
R JI HE I 8 Lapse of share options = = = (563) 563 =
B4 e Cash dividends

(MFEE13H) (note 13) — — — — (12,296) (12,296)
N At 30 June 2016

AH=TH 429,292 1,644 142,345 6,586 68,058 647,925
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued)
for A B s MR TR R R )

BRE-Z—-ANEAA=ZTHILAEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

32. EEBYE A ul Wk 32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES
R_E—ARNFEAH=ZTHEZE—H Particulars of principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2016 and 30
FARA=ZTH FERBARZFHE June 2015 are as follows:
mr
ARilff
- e LRITRA/
A4 L/ B R CHRITRARA /IS A YR i
Proportion of nominal
value of issued/
Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid up registered capital
Name of subsidiary registration/operation share capital/registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
i1 1 i
Ordinary Others
“F-NER
“R-R Z “FN -1k
2016 and
2016 2015
TRbEARAR Fi oo ERwT - - 0% HREER
Ardent Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HKS1,200 HKS1,200 - = 100%  Investment holding
KRHBEREREARAT A K - - RAdN000 00000 W HEBELER
(Hit—) Wit=)
Beijing Longfast Property PRC (Note ) - - US830,000,000  US$30,000,000 9% Property investment and
Development Co., Ltd. (Note ) (Note i) development
RS HARA Fik # o - - 0% REEORE
Billion Stock Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS2 HKS2 - = 100%  Provision of nominee services
EREATE EZ AV EZ AV - - 0% HEER
Broad Capital Investments Limited ~ British Virgin Islands USS1 USS! - - 100%  Investment holding
PRHERARAT & L3 o - - 0% HERE
China Gain Properties Limited Hong Kong HKS?2 HKS2 - - 10%  Property investment
ENARAA EREARE FE000E  EES00007 - - % fEER
Dynamic (B.V.L) Limited British Virgin Islands USS$50,000 US850,000 - = 100%  Investment holding
ENEE (L) FRAR EEEARE 3 L - - 0% HE
Dynamic Management (Beijing) ~ British Virgin Islands HKS7 HKS7 - - 100%  Financing
Limited
ENERRHARAR Fik #h i - - 0% RUEmRE
Dynamic Management Services ~ Hong Kong HKS2 HKS2 - = 100%  Provision of management
Limited services
Fit 3 o - - 100% ke R
Dynamic (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HKS2 HKS2 - - 100%  Provision of management
services
BARNE (TR FAEE  HRELHE LAV ELAVH - - 0% EE
AR
Dynamic Real Estate (China) British Virgin Islands USs1 USS1 - - 100%  Management consultancy
Management Consultancy
Limited
Glory Diamond Inc. RERLHS E410% E4107 - 5 0% SR
British Virgin Islands US$10 USs10 - - 100%  Investment holding
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32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B30 ) - FAR NS E

WEATDAR W/ AR

Place of incorporation/

32

HEk

Ordinary

Name of subsidiary registration/operation
“F-NE
2016
B EARA Fik #h
Harvic Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS2
RESEARA EREARE LAV
High Grand Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands USS1
BHERARA Fit w1
Move On International Limited Hong Kong HKS1

Wit

33.

— - FE P B AL 2 b st A RE 5 M BR 8 AT
B A] (T Jb i€ A mi ) 5k it 2 b Ah & E
KN ] e db o R RE 2 GE R A A 55 &
30,000,000 G © b= %t A {1k 4F B i Bk 2 9%
430,000,000 7C ) A< 42 [ BT 0 /2 2 A - AR
M > A 5 [ 46 [R) 2wl 484 b 50 R 18 959 A1)
HRFERE -

— -~ B 1A BR 2 A M Glory Diamond Inc. B 7%
ANFIHBERGWEA S > A KB AR
MR -

1l

Ay T H AR Sy L LR B S W B
BRGNS RRE 2 AN F B A
Sz i 51 WD H A B Ja 2 1 A S A AR
LB

PO~ A B 4 A AR A AR AR I R A ] I ]
I AT AT ] G5 a0 o

e ) &% 90

MEMGECELENER —F—N
F— AN B EW > I PR
REFEBIEZHGE - R _F—NF
£ A - Bk B A 5
ZHURE - M B 2 AT R S BT A I
ZWERM - FEHEINR AL F R A Y
B_E-ARELAT-HHLE -

A T B R T PR R ()
BREZZ-ANEAA=ZTHILAEE
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Kb
CHiTRA /i
VAT A I
Proportion of nominal
value of issued/
Issued and paid up registered capital
share capital/registered capital held by the Company ~ Principal activities
)
Others
“E-NER
e S5 =1 “Z-1ik
2016 and
2016 2015
o - - 0% FEER
HKS2 - - 100%  Investment holding
EZAVH - - 0% FEER
USS! - - 100%  Investment holding
AV - - 0% ERE
HKS! - - 100%  Property investment
Notes:
i. Beijing Longfast Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Longfast”)

33.

established in the PRC is registered as sino-foreign co-operative joint
venture. Beijing Longfast had a registered capital of US$30,000,000. The
amount of US$30,000,000 disclosed in both years above represents capital
paid by the Group. However, the Group’s entitlement to share the profit
and net assets in Beijing Longfast was agreed to be at 95%.

ii. Other than Dynamic (B.V.1.) Limited and Glory Diamond Inc., which are
wholly-owned directly by the Company, all subsidiaries are held by the
Company indirectly.

iii. The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors of the Company, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive
length.

iv. None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
year, or at any time during the year.

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

The joint venture operation period of Zhen Wah expired on 16
January 2014 and an application was lodged to PRC court to
liquidate Zhen Wah. In July 2016, the PRC court accepted the
application for the compulsory liquidation of Zhen Wah and
appointed a law firm as the liquidation committee of Zhen Wah.
Details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 11
July 2016.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

CUpL DA

TR 3

BEH

FERARAGAA
E Ak i 1

1 Ji 2 A A
(BN M)

T P 4 9 2
(% M)

Turnover

Profit for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company

Basic earnings per share
(Hong Kong cents)

Diluted earnings per share
(Hong Kong cents)

BR TR - B B AR

ERR SV G4l
BEH
CY-Fied £
CX-FEVE
ATHEAN A7 3K
VB

KEMAME

LUNGIE 2PN 5
T B
Mt a

RATHHK

— AR R EE
I AE R £ 1R
AR

ARAE

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Interest in a joint venture
Amount due from a joint venture
Pledged bank deposits

Current assets

Total assets

Equity attributable to the owners
of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Bank loans
— due after one year

Deferred tax liabilities

Current liabilities

Total liabilities

SER-EESF-NEEER | ZOEEARA A

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

BREAAZTHIEEE

Year ended 30 June

S SE-WE SF-RF SR
2013 2014 2015 2016
BEFL  BETIE BT BWTL
§°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$000
) #J)
(Restated) (Restated)
94216 124,504 106,215 103,437 103,870
85,003 123,166 94972 101,586 95,085
38.8 56.2 433 46.3 9.7
385 54.1 409 435 40.7

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND

EQUITY
BRAH=1+H
At 30 June
“E-NE ZE-HE B AR
2013 2014 2015
BT BETIL BETT

HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000

(i Resra'fed)
2222 2,049 1,979 2,012 1,743
1,737,936 1,867,428 1,930,079 2,000,101 1,926,240
60,972 85,614 76,235 94.467 71,570
246,393 236,927 252,355 239,924 235,184
- - - 2278 -
228,256 259918 279,970 291,264 293,399
2,275,779 2,451,936 2,540,618 2,630,046 2,528,136
1,626,861 1,781,014 1,871,313 1,974,794 1,902,346
29,626 32,851 34,466 36,572 34,154
1,656,487 1,813,865 1,905,779 2,011,366 1,936,500
205,718 - 191,192 164,592 -
231,355 261,041 272,312 282,051 283,573
182,219 377,030 171,335 172,037 308,063
619,292 638,071 634,839 618,680 591,636
2,275,779 2,451,936 2,540,618 2,630,046 2,528,136




PROFORMA COMBINED BALANCE SHEET OF AFFILIATED COMPANY
B A w5 f TR E R AR

MNZE—NEANH=ZTH» ZAAFL T —  Details of advances given to an affiliated company as at 30 June
MEE A A BEEELR(EERAFEBE S 2016, which exceeded 8% under the assets ratio as defined under rule
T ABRA A ES L ER (T EWBA ) 13.16 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
H13.1605) BT B E 8% I E RN T - Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) are as follows:

AR
Affiliated company W I K W

Percentage of

equity held by Amount of

the Group advances
HHT T
HKS$°000

TR 22 345 ¥ A BRA A Shenzhen Zhen Wah Harbour
(T Y3 ]) (Kt 7E) Enterprises Ltd. (“Zhen Wah”) (Note) 49% 235,184

Htat c YIFERE S W —F — 04 — H X HJE © £ Note: The operation period of Zhen Wah expired on 16 January 2014. Thereafter, Zhen
1% > PIFE L I A S REBIE AT - Wah ceased its operation and is now in the process of liquidation.

REFG TFYFEEA L KIEEMA G S A% The advances to Zhen Wah by the Group have been accounted for as
R SN GGG I BETE M 3 551738 A% amount due from a joint venture, details of which are disclosed in note

% o 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

R G RE A RS R B R T The amount of advances are unsecured and to be repayable after the
+ W A% E R next twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

MR8 b w7 A B BR 13,22 M 1 FF 4 4 R L E Pursuant to the continuing disclosure requirements under rule 13.22 of
A E—NFENHZ=ZTH > YIFERMH %S the Listing Rules, the proforma combined balance sheet of Zhen Wah
& B R KA 4 [ eI 3 b E {5 #E 4% and the attributable interest of the Group in Zhen Wah as at 30 June

W 2016 are disclosed as follows:
BEBAGAHEEHEEAMBE PROFORMA COMBINED BALANCE SHEET OF
AFFILIATED COMPANY

%% & vF ALH

¥ A f ik M A1 HE 2k

Proforma Group’s

combined attributable

balance sheet interest

T W oT

HKS$°000 HK$°000

I Ui By Non-current assets 228,831 112,127

it ) A Current assets 45,583 22,336
i B Current liabilities (11,436) (5,604)
I B AR Non-current liabilities (235,184) (115,240)

& Net assets 27,794 13,619
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ANALYSIS OF PROPERTIES HELD

CIERRCEYE Zigii}

RZFE—=AREASAH=Z1TH iFAEEEY
EZFEMT

o 2 i ¢
#Y

Approximate
site area

A

Location

i N R LA
B

W B R
ME TR
i

BN =S
ZAE

g

Unsold portion of Residential N/A
Phase Il and Phase III of

Chaoyang Garden

No. 25 Nan Lane

Ganlouyuan

Chaoyang District

Beijing

The People’s Republic of China

R_FE—=ARNEANA=ZTH FRAREY
EZFEHMT

(0N

Location

e N RILAE

Lt

I ST [

W7 BN+ U

5 1B [ TR 7 A

EHEE T CRR T =)

Levels 7 to 22 (without levels 13 and 14)
West Tower, Eton Place

No. 69 Dongfang Road

Pudong New Area

Shanghai

The People’s Republic of China

LRE PN e

Jb

i 55 o H 5%

HHE A
B~ 5 T AR = G
J 58 = T

Car parking spaces in Phase I, II, ITI
and commercial portion of Phase I1I

No. 25 Nan Lane

Ganlouyuan

Chaoyang District

Beijing

The People’s Republic of China
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Particulars of properties held for sale at 30 June 2016:

%8 e i
il B 49
Approximate
developed
gross floor Stage of
area completion

e i B R 95%
9,699°F 1 IR

B
19,143 15

b AN

7R 4 B 2

Group’s
interests

Phase II:
9,699 sq.t.
Phase III:
19,143 sq.ft.

Completed 95%

jiE:S

Usage

N

Office

[LEYA S 2

Commercial/
Car-parking

BT
HA

Expected
date of
completion

AN

N/A

Particulars of properties held for investment at 30 June 2016:

HATAE W

Lease term

H

Medium

3

Medium



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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REHRE R
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WP EH RS
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SRR HE ST IR SCB B Y BT 75 R A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and management of Dynamic
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) strive to establish and uphold
good practices and procedures on corporate governance. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasise an effective Board,
prudent risk management and internal control systems, transparency
and accountability to its stakeholders including shareholders,

customers, suppliers, employees and the public.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, being the financial year under
review, the Board and the management of the Company have been
continually reviewing and enhancing the corporate governance
practices of the Company with reference to local and international
best practices from time to time. The Board believes that its continued
efforts in enhancing the Company’s corporate governance practices
have contributed to sustain the business growth of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) in the past years.

For the year ended 30 June 2016, the Company has applied the
principles and adhered to the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited as amended from time to time (“Listing Rules”)
and where appropriate, met the recommended best practices in the CG
Code with an aim to safeguard the interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

The Company has also established an internal corporate governance
code (compliance guide) (the “Internal CG Code”), the contents
of which are in line with the CG Code as revised from time to time
according to the relevant amendments to the Listing Rules. The
Internal CG Code aims to facilitate compliance with the CG Code and
to give guidance to Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) and
the senior management of the Company in this respect. The Board will
continue to monitor and review the corporate governance practices and
procedures of the Company to ensure compliance with the CG Code
and to enhance its practices and procedures.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
Directors on the same terms as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as amended from time to time (the “Model Code”). Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, each Director has confirmed to
the Company that he has complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year ended 30 June 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued /)
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HERIE ek (#37 FFH 178 F)
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GO Patrick Lim /& 4= (#57 HEHATHEF)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises seven executive Directors (the
“Executive Directors”) and five Independent Non-Executive
Directors (the “Independent Non-executive Directors”). The
members of the Board during the year ended 30 June 2016 and as at
30 September 2016 are as follows:

Mr. TAN Harry Chua
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank

(Chairman and Executive Director)

(Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director)

(Executive Director)

(Executive Director)

(Executive Director)

(Executive Director)

Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao

Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales

Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy

Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan
(appointed on 1 April 2016)

Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth

Dr. SY Robin Chua

Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John

Mr. GO Patrick Lim

Mr. TAN Kenway Hao
(appointed on 1 April 2016)

(Executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming
(retired on 11 December 2015)

(Executive Director)

Mr. WONG Sai Tat
(resigned on 13 July 2015)

(Executive Director)

Currently, the Company has five Independent Non-executive Directors
representing more than one-third of the Board and more than one of
them have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

Responsibilities and Accountabilities

The Board is responsible for establishing the overall strategic
development and direction, setting business objectives and
development plans, monitoring the performance of the business and
senior management, and ensuring sound corporate governance of the
Group. It also monitors the financial performance, the internal controls
and risk management of the Group’s business operations. Executive
Directors are responsible for running and managing the operations of

the Group and executing the strategies adopted by the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Responsibilities and Accountabilities (Continued)

The day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to the
management with departmental heads responsible for different
aspects of the business and functions of the Group. The Independent
Non-executive Directors serve the function of bringing independent
judgment on the development, performance, internal controls,
corporate governance and risk management of the Group through
their contributions in the meetings of the Board and committees of the
Board.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the Company held a total
of seven Board meetings including regular board meetings at
approximately quarterly intervals and an annual general meeting.
Details of Directors’ attendance record of such regular Board meetings

and general meeting during the year are as follows:

Attendance/ Attendance/

Nos. of Board  No. of general

meetings meeting(s)

Directors to be attended  to be attended
Mr. TAN Harry Chua 717 1/1
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank 717 0/1
Mr. TAN Lucio Jr. Khao 7/7 1/1
Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales 717 0/1
Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy 717 11
Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan 11 0/0

(appointed on 1 April 2016)

Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan 77 1/1
Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 7/7 11
Dr. SY Robin Chua 717 0/1
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 717 1/1
Mr. GO Patrick Lim 7/7 1/1
Mr. TAN Kenway Hao 1/1 0/0

(appointed on 1 April 2016)

Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming 4/4 0/1
(retired on 11 December 2015)

Mr. WONG Sai Tat 1/1 0/0
(resigned on 13 July 2015)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Training and Development

For training and continuing professional development of Directors,
the Company provides relevant information and publications to all
Directors on a regular basis to keep them abreast of the latest changes
and development in the industry, commercial, legal, statutory and
regulatory environment in which the Group conducts its business,
and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles, functions
and duties of a Director of a listed company to ensure that the
Directors’ contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Company also updates Directors from time to time on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. In addition, all
Directors are encouraged to attend external forums or training courses
on relevant topics for their continuous professional development.
There are arrangements in place for Directors to obtain continuing
professional development at the Company’s expense whenever

necessary.

The newly appointed Directors, Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan and Mr.
TAN Kenway Hao, received induction on the first occasion of their
appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Group and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant

statutory requirements.

In accordance with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’
training and continuous professional development, all Directors, Mr.
TAN Harry Chua, Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, Mr. TAN Lucio Jr.
Khao, Mr. TAN Michael Gonzales, Mr. PASCUAL Ramon Sy, Mr.
CHUA Joseph Tan, Mr. CHIU Siu Hung, Allan, Mr. CHONG Kim
Chan, Kenneth, Dr. SY Robin Chua, Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John, Mr.
GO Patrick Lim, Mr. TAN Kenway Hao, Mr. CHEUNG Chi Ming
(retired on 11 December 2015) and Mr. WONG Sai Tat (resigned on
13 July 2015) have participated in the training activities described
above including, amongst others, in-house briefing, luncheon talks,
training courses and/or seminars, as well as self-study and coaching
and mentoring provided to internal staff. Each Director has provided a
record of training they received during the year to the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and responsibilities of the chairman (the “Chairman”)
and the chief executive officer (the “CEO”) of the Company are
segregated and separately undertaken by different officers to ensure a
balance of power and authority. Mr. TAN Harry Chua, the Chairman,
provides leadership and is responsible for driving effective functioning
of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance practice,
and overseeing the Group’s overall direction and strategic planning.
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank, the CEO, is mainly responsible for
implementing objectives, policies and strategies approved by the
Board and managing the business and affairs of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Currently, all Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
(the Company has currently no other non-executive Directors) are
appointed for a term of two years subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). The
Bye-laws stipulate that every Director will be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years at annual general meeting of

the Company, and being eligible for re-election.

Meanwhile, all Independent Non-executive Directors have to confirm
their respective independence annually pursuant to rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules for their continuous appointment after reviewed and
assessed by Nomination Committee, and those serving for more than
9 years, their further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolutions to be approved by the shareholders of the Company. The
Company has received from each of Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual written confirmation of his independence and the
Board considers that each Independent Non-executive Director meets
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and is independent.

BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit
Committee for overseeing specific aspects of the affairs of the Group.
Each committee is established with defined terms of reference, which
are posted on the website of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a remuneration committee of the Board (the
“Remuneration Committee”) since 2005 with terms of reference,
which meet the requirements set out in paragraph B.1.2 of the CG
Code. The members of the Remuneration Committee during the year
ended 30 June 2016 and as at 30 September 2016 are as follows:

Mr. TAN Harry Chua
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank

(Chairman and Executive Director)

(Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth*
Dr. SY Robin Chua
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John

*  Chairman of Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing,
evaluating and/or recommending to the Board the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management; the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing the policy of such remuneration; and the specific
remuneration packages (if any) of individual Executive Directors and

senior management.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the members of the
Remuneration Committee performed the following works pursuant to
action and resolutions in writing signed by all members in accordance

with its terms of reference:

1. reviewed the remuneration policy and structure of the Directors
of the Company and employees of the Group and recommended
the emoluments of the respective Directors of the Company for
the year ended 30 June 2016;

2. recommended to the Board the emolument of two newly
appointed Directors, Mr. CHUA Joseph Tan and Mr. TAN
Kenway Hao respectively; and

3. considered and recommended the grant of share option to an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company.

As such, no meetings were held by the Remuneration Committee
during the year ended 30 June 2016.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Nomination Committee

The Board has established a nomination committee of the Board (the
“Nomination Committee”) since 2012 with terms of reference, which
meet the requirements as set out in paragraph A.5.2 of the CG Code.
The members of the Nomination Committee during the year ended 30
June 2016 and as at 30 September 2016 are as follows:

Mr. TAN Harry Chua*
Dr. CHAN Wing Kit, Frank

(Chairman and Executive Director)

(Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth
Dr. SY Robin Chua
Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John

*  Chairman of Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the composition, structure, size and diversity of the Board; formulating
and monitoring the policy for nomination of Directors; making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of Directors and assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors. Criteria adopted by the Nomination
Committee in considering whether the relevant personnel are suitable as
Directors include their qualifications, experience, expertise, skills and
knowledge, ethnical, age, cultural background and so on in view of the
provisions of the Listing Rules and the policy of diversity of the Board
(the “Policy”) as adopted by the Board.

Board Diversity

The purpose of the Policy is to increase diversity at the level of the
Board; to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and quality of its
performance; and to support the attainment of strategic objectives/plan

and sustainable and balanced development of the Company.

The optimum composition of the Board will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to regional, industry
and professional experience, skills and knowledge, relevant length
of services, gender, age, race, ethnicity, cultural and educational
background and other qualities of Directors. The ultimate decision will
be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidate(s) will
bring to the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)
Board Diversity (Continued)

The Nomination Committee will monitor and review the Policy and
recommend any revisions thereof (if appropriate) to the Board.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the members of the Nomination
Committee performed the following works pursuant to action and
resolutions in writing signed by all members in accordance with its

terms of reference:

1. assessed and recommended to the Board the appointment of Mr.
CHUA Joseph Tan as Executive Director of the Company and
Mr. TAN Kenway Hao as Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company;

2. reviewed the size, composition and structure and diversity of the
Board, and assessed the balance of skills and experience of the
Board as expedient with diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the business of the Group;

3. reviewed the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors; and

4. reviewed retirement and re-election of Directors.

As such, no meetings were held by the Nomination Committee during
the year ended 30 June 2016.

For diversity of the members of the Board in terms of qualifications,
skills and knowledge, age, ethnicity, relevant years of experience and
expertise and relationships (including business, financial and family,
if any) among them and between the chairman and chief executive
officer, please refer to the “Profile of Management” and the section on
“Directors interests in competing business” in the “Directors’ Report”
on pages 11 to 15 and pages 16 to 26 respectively of this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Audit Committee

The Board has established an audit committee of the Board (the “Audit
Committee”) since 1999 with terms of reference, which meet the
requirements as set out in paragraph C.3.3 of the CG Code. During the
year, the Board has delegated the functions of corporate governance to
the Audit Committee with additional terms of reference as set out in
paragraph D.3.1 of the CG Code. The members of the audit committee
during the year ended 30 June 2016 and as at 30 September 2016 are as
follows:

Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth*
Dr. SY Robin Chua

Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John

Mr. GO Patrick Lim

(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

*  Chairman of Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the following duties:
Relationship with the auditors

1. to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor;

2. to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

Review of the financial information, financial reporting system, risk

management and internal control systems

3. to review and monitor integrity of financial statements of the
Company and the annual report, half-year report and accounts
of the Company and to review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them;

4. to oversee the financial reporting system and review the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group;

Relationship with employees
5. toreview arrangement for employees of the Group to raise

concerns about possible improprieties of financial reporting,
internal control or other matters; and
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BHREHEE () Audit Committee (Continued)

#EH BB Corporate governance function

6. MEMEHEFRGHEROMESIHA 6. toreview and monitor corporate governance functions delegated
Tk fE o by the Board.

BE_FE-ANESNH=Z1THILEERN > % During the year ended 30 June 2016, two meetings were held and

% % 5@5% TWR G EEEmMPE > resolutions in writing were passed by the Audit Committee for,
WARIEFR T B ek & B st sm H A LY amongst others, the following in accordance with the terms of
HIE reference of the Audit Committee:
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recommended the re-appointment of the external auditor; and
reviewed the financial reporting system and procedures of
risks and internal controls of the Group; and the draft audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2015;

approved the engagement of the external auditor for reviewing
interim results; and reviewed the draft unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the six
months ended 31 December 2015; and

reviewed and monitored the policies and practices on corporate
governance under D.3.1 of the CG Code, and compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements as stated in corporate
governance report of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2015
and as disclosed in the interim report for the six months ended

AL A A SEE IR EUR IR R o 31 December 2015.

FHEBGR BN AEFENEFEREZE  Details of the attendance record of members in the meetings of Audit
FERNFEHNT

Committee during the year are as follows:

Attendance/

Nos. of meetings

Members to be attended

HERI T R 212 Mr. CHONG Kim Chan, Kenneth 2/2
SY Robin Chua {8+ 212 Dr. SY Robin Chua 2/2
FE SR AE I 22 Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 2/2
GO Patrick Lim 56 4E 212 Mr. GO Patrick Lim 2/2
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 30 June 2016, audit and non-audit services were
provided to the Group by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the auditor of the
Company (the “Auditor”). The analysis of services and remuneration
paid and payable in connection therewith are as follows:

Services provided Amount
HKS$°000

Audit services
. Audit fee for consolidated financial statements
of the Group and mandatory provident funds and
defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2016 1,216

Non-audit services
. Fee for reviewing interim results for the
six months ended 31 December 2015 and

preliminary announcement of final results for

the year ended 30 June 2016 205
. Fee for tax services for the year ended 30 June
2016 113

The Audit Committee is of the view that the Auditor’s independence
and objectivity will not be affected by the provision of the
abovementioned limited scope of the non-audit services to the Group.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit

Committee on the selection, re-appointment, resignation or dismissal

of its external auditor during the year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group and have prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity of the Group. While
recognising that the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$14,664,000 at 30 June 2016, the Directors are of the opinion
that the Group will be able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due for the foreseeable future as the Group has sufficient and
steady projected future cash inflow and available unutilised bank
borrowing facilities. And the Directors expect to renew the existing
banking facilities on similar terms and conditions when the existing
banking facilities of the Group mature (if necessary). Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

The Auditor’s statement of reporting responsibilities and report
on material uncertainty (if any) of the Group are set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 27 to 28 to this annual
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks to take in achieving the strategic objectives
of the Company, and ensuring that the Company establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal

control systems.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the Board and the Audit
Committee have conducted and completed a review in respect of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of

the Group, which has been concluded to be adequate and effective.

Such review conducts annually and covers all material controls
including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management functions. The Group has internal audit function and no
material control failure or significant areas of concern or fraud which
might affect the interests of the shareholders of the Company were
identified during the reviews.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Ms. WONG Oi Yee, Polly
has complied with rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 30
June 2016.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company regards communication with its shareholders and
investors as an important means to enhance the transparency of
the Group and regularly collects views and feedback from them,
to safeguard the interests of its shareholders and investors. To this
end, the Company communicates with its shareholders through
various channels, including annual general meetings, special general
meetings, annual reports, notices of general meetings, circulars sent to
shareholders of the Company, announcements, press releases and other
corporate communications available on the website of the Company.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 11 December
2015 (“AGM”), management and external auditor of the Company
together with the chairman of the Board; and the chairmen and
members of the Board’s committees attended the AGM to answer
relevant questions raised by and understand the views of the
shareholders of the Company thereat. In respect of the year ended
30 June 2016, an annual general meeting of the Company will be
held on 9 December 2016, at which the Company will arrange for
the Chairmen of the Board and committees of the Board to attend
and answer questions and proposals raised by the shareholders of the
Company thereat.

Shareholders, investors and the media can make enquiries or proposals
to Board of the Company through the following means:

Telephone: (852) 2881 5221
Fax: (852) 2881 5224
Post: 17th Floor
Eton Tower
8 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
Website: http://www.dynamic.hk
Email: info@dynamic-hk.com
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

By virtue of section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 (Bermuda) (as
amended), the procedures for shareholders to convene a special
general meeting and to put forward proposals at general meetings are:

1. The Directors, notwithstanding anything in the Bye-laws shall,
on the requisition of member(s) of the Company holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,
forthwith proceed duly to convene a special general meeting of
the Company.

2. The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at
the registered office of the Company at Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda, and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

3. If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the said date.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the year ended 30 June 2016, there were no significant changes
in the Company’s constitutional document, namely, the memorandum
of association and Bye-laws which are posted on the website of the
Company.






uiC
Ld

www.dynamic.hk



	COVER

	INSIDE FRONT COVER

	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE AND INVESTOR INFORMATION
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	PROFILE OF MANAGEMENT
	DIRECTORS’ REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	PROFORMA COMBINED BALANCE SHEET OF AFFILIATED COMPANY
	ANALYSIS OF PROPERTIES HELD
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	INSIDE BACK COVER

	BACK COVER



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /CFangSong-Light
    /CGuLi-Bold
    /CGuYin-Bold
    /CHei2-Bold
    /CHei2-Xbold
    /CHei3-Bold
    /CHei-UltraBold
    /CJNgai-Bold
    /CKan-Xbold
    /CNganKai-Bold
    /CO2Yuen-XboldOutline
    /COYuen-Xbold
    /COYuen-XboldOutline
    /CPo3-Bold
    /CPo-Bold
    /CSong3-Medium
    /CSu-Medium
    /CXingKai-Bold
    /CXing-Medium
    /CXLi-Medium
    /CYuen-SemiMedium
    /MBei-Bold
    /MHei-Bold
    /MHei-Light
    /MHei-Medium
    /MHei-Xbold
    /MKai-Medium
    /MKai-SemiBold
    /MLi-Bold
    /MNgai-Bold
    /MSung-Light
    /MSung-Medium
    /MSung-Xbold
    /MYuen-Light
    /MYuen-Medium
    /MYuen-Xbold
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 200
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 200
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHT <>
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToRGB
      /DestinationProfileName (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
      /DestinationProfileSelector /UseName
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MarksOffset 0
      /MarksWeight 0.283460
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PageMarksFile /JapaneseWithCircle
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /CFangSong-Light
    /CGuLi-Bold
    /CGuYin-Bold
    /CHei2-Bold
    /CHei2-Xbold
    /CHei3-Bold
    /CHei-UltraBold
    /CJNgai-Bold
    /CKan-Xbold
    /CNganKai-Bold
    /CO2Yuen-XboldOutline
    /COYuen-Xbold
    /COYuen-XboldOutline
    /CPo3-Bold
    /CPo-Bold
    /CSong3-Medium
    /CSu-Medium
    /CXingKai-Bold
    /CXing-Medium
    /CXLi-Medium
    /CYuen-SemiMedium
    /MBei-Bold
    /MHei-Bold
    /MHei-Light
    /MHei-Medium
    /MHei-Xbold
    /MKai-Medium
    /MKai-SemiBold
    /MLi-Bold
    /MNgai-Bold
    /MSung-Light
    /MSung-Medium
    /MSung-Xbold
    /MYuen-Light
    /MYuen-Medium
    /MYuen-Xbold
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 200
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 200
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHT <>
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToRGB
      /DestinationProfileName (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
      /DestinationProfileSelector /UseName
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MarksOffset 0
      /MarksWeight 0.283460
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PageMarksFile /JapaneseWithCircle
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /CFangSong-Light
    /CGuLi-Bold
    /CGuYin-Bold
    /CHei2-Bold
    /CHei2-Xbold
    /CHei3-Bold
    /CHei-UltraBold
    /CJNgai-Bold
    /CKan-Xbold
    /CNganKai-Bold
    /CO2Yuen-XboldOutline
    /COYuen-Xbold
    /COYuen-XboldOutline
    /CPo3-Bold
    /CPo-Bold
    /CSong3-Medium
    /CSu-Medium
    /CXingKai-Bold
    /CXing-Medium
    /CXLi-Medium
    /CYuen-SemiMedium
    /MBei-Bold
    /MHei-Bold
    /MHei-Light
    /MHei-Medium
    /MHei-Xbold
    /MKai-Medium
    /MKai-SemiBold
    /MLi-Bold
    /MNgai-Bold
    /MSung-Light
    /MSung-Medium
    /MSung-Xbold
    /MYuen-Light
    /MYuen-Medium
    /MYuen-Xbold
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 200
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 200
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHT <>
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToRGB
      /DestinationProfileName (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
      /DestinationProfileSelector /UseName
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MarksOffset 0
      /MarksWeight 0.283460
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PageMarksFile /JapaneseWithCircle
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /CFangSong-Light
    /CGuLi-Bold
    /CGuYin-Bold
    /CHei2-Bold
    /CHei2-Xbold
    /CHei3-Bold
    /CHei-UltraBold
    /CJNgai-Bold
    /CKan-Xbold
    /CNganKai-Bold
    /CO2Yuen-XboldOutline
    /COYuen-Xbold
    /COYuen-XboldOutline
    /CPo3-Bold
    /CPo-Bold
    /CSong3-Medium
    /CSu-Medium
    /CXingKai-Bold
    /CXing-Medium
    /CXLi-Medium
    /CYuen-SemiMedium
    /MBei-Bold
    /MHei-Bold
    /MHei-Light
    /MHei-Medium
    /MHei-Xbold
    /MKai-Medium
    /MKai-SemiBold
    /MLi-Bold
    /MNgai-Bold
    /MSung-Light
    /MSung-Medium
    /MSung-Xbold
    /MYuen-Light
    /MYuen-Medium
    /MYuen-Xbold
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 200
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 200
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHT <>
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToRGB
      /DestinationProfileName (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
      /DestinationProfileSelector /UseName
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MarksOffset 0
      /MarksWeight 0.283460
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PageMarksFile /JapaneseWithCircle
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /CFangSong-Light
    /CGuLi-Bold
    /CGuYin-Bold
    /CHei2-Bold
    /CHei2-Xbold
    /CHei3-Bold
    /CHei-UltraBold
    /CJNgai-Bold
    /CKan-Xbold
    /CNganKai-Bold
    /CO2Yuen-XboldOutline
    /COYuen-Xbold
    /COYuen-XboldOutline
    /CPo3-Bold
    /CPo-Bold
    /CSong3-Medium
    /CSu-Medium
    /CXingKai-Bold
    /CXing-Medium
    /CXLi-Medium
    /CYuen-SemiMedium
    /MBei-Bold
    /MHei-Bold
    /MHei-Light
    /MHei-Medium
    /MHei-Xbold
    /MKai-Medium
    /MKai-SemiBold
    /MLi-Bold
    /MNgai-Bold
    /MSung-Light
    /MSung-Medium
    /MSung-Xbold
    /MYuen-Light
    /MYuen-Medium
    /MYuen-Xbold
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 200
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 200
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHT <>
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToRGB
      /DestinationProfileName (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
      /DestinationProfileSelector /UseName
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MarksOffset 0
      /MarksWeight 0.283460
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PageMarksFile /JapaneseWithCircle
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


